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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
investment holding company. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries (the Company and the subsidiaries are
hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) are the designing,
manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine jewellery
and diamonds. Also, the Group maintains an investment
portfolio including property investment and development
and other industries.

On the manufacturing side, Continental Jewellery (Mfg.)
Limited, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, mainly
engages in the product development, manufacture
and marketing of fine jewellery primarily for export
and is regarded as one of the leaders in fine jewellery
manufacturing. A substantial share of our jewellery products
is currently directed at the middle to upper segments of the
market. We specialize in manufacturing fine jewellery in
precious metal set with diamond, ruby, emerald, sapphire,
pearl and other semiprecious stones.

The Group has production plants in China with full
capabilities in jewellery design, direct stone sourcing,
stone cutting, lapidary, alloying and gold refining. The
management of the Group is known for its commitment to
quality, and its finished products are visible testaments to
that commitment.

The Group has fully-integrated diamond cutting and
jewellery production facilities in China. With around 900
skilled workers, our facilities are best known for their quality
and ability to handle diamond cutting works on a wide range
of products.
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Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP

Group Chairman

| am pleased to present the annual report of Continental
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) for the financial year ended 30 June 2011.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the fiscal year 2011, the Group achieved a turnover
of HK$973.5 million (2010: HK$1,031.7 million). Profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$33.5 million
(2010: HK$4.8 million (restated)) and earnings per share was
HK1.06 cents (2010: HK0.15 cents (restated)).

The overall global economy even after months and years
of recuperation have yet shown any promising results
and the business environment has been adjusting to the
slowing momentum of the economies. In jewellery, the
luxury consumption overseas remains sluggish attributed to
uncertain worldwide economies and the surging gold and
diamond prices. Overall, the macro-environment has not
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been very encouraging. While combating these challenges,
the Group has been successful in increasing the bottom line
and profit margins despite a slight decrease in revenues.
These are resulted from the Group’s continual efforts and
commitment in tightening the cost structure, providing more
value-added services, creating more branded products, as
well as partnering on licensed products. Nevertheless, many
key challenges still remain ahead with a highly competitive
marketplace, the imminent rising of labour costs and
expected appreciation of Renminbi.

In Property, the Group maintains investments in both
Hong Kong and PRC. Both projects are progressing well as
anticipated. The Group's development project of a land site
located at Nos. 236-242 Des Voeux Road Central is in good
progress. The project occupies site area of approximately 302
square meters which will be developed into a commercial
premise with GFA of approximately 4,527 square meters.
In PRC, through a 50% jointly controlled entity, the Group
holds two parcels of land in Shanghai with a total site area
of approximately 18,101 square meters and a GFA totalling
of approximately 98,881 square meters. The Group intends
to develop this site into an eleven-floored upscale multi-
purpose property comprising of a large shopping mall,
premium grade offices and car parking facilities. Foundation
work of the project has started in early 2011 and the whole
project is expected to be completed by 2014.

In Mining, the Group remains optimistic on the outlook of
the commodities market. On 30 March 2011, the Group
completed the acquisition of 5,384,527 common shares of
Macarthur Minerals Limited ("MMS"”). MMS is an Australian
company listed on TSX Venture Exchange in Canada with
principal business in the exploration and development of
a prospective iron ore mining project located in Western
Australia. Furthermore, the acquisition of Hongzhuang
gold mine is just around the corner, we plan to gear up the
resumption of gold production and exploration immediately
upon completion. In view of the record high gold prices, we
foresee these projects will broaden the sources of income to
the Group in the near future.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Overall, challenges lie ahead in view of today’s volatile
and uncertain global economic and financial markets. The
sovereign debt risk in the United States and Europe remains
a looming concern over the development and growth in
businesses. Despite a challenging market environment, the
Group remains confident in the long term prospect of the
jewellery industry. The Group will continue to strengthen its
supreme product quality and service; and to focus on new
and branded collections in order to offer exceptional product
value to our customers. Moreover, the Group also sees great
potential in the mining sector and foresees these projects will
be able to generate new income streams for the Group. With
a more diversed portfolio, the Group hopes to enhance the
value to our employees, shareholders, and investors.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

As of 30 June 2011, the Group had a moderate gearing
ratio of 0.19 (2010: 0.03), which is calculated on net debt
divided by total equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of bank and other borrowings less cash and
cash equivalents. Total cash and cash equivalents were
HK$49,867,000 (2010: HK$153,940,000) which were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollar, US Dollar and
British Pound, while bank loans were HK$235,139,000
(2010: HK$178,994,000) which were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi and other borrowings
in respect of convertible note of HK$50,802,000 (2010:
Nil) and amount due to ultimate holding company of
HK$7,877,000 (2010: HK$7,877,000) which were
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar. The decrease in cash
and cash equivalents and the increase in borrowings were
mainly used for capital injection in a jointly controlled entity
and payment for the acquisition of 5,384,527 shares in
MMS. These bank loans are secured by first legal charges
over the Group's investment property, certain leasehold land
and buildings, and corporate guarantees executed by the
Company.

In line with the Group's prudent financial management, the
directors considered that the Group has sufficient working
capital to meet its operational requirements.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 30 June 2011, the Group's investment property,
certain leasehold land and buildings and land use rights with
an aggregate net carrying value of HK$469,032,000 (2010:
HK$432,859,000) were pledged to certain banks to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

All the Group'’s borrowings are denominated in local Hong
Kong Dollar and Renminbi. Interest is determined on the
basis of Hong Kong Inter-bank Offering Rate or Prime
Rate and Renminbi fixed rate. There was no change to the
Group's capital structure during the year ended 30 June
2011. In light of the current financial position of the Group
and provided there is no unforeseeable circumstance, the
management does not anticipate the need to change the
capital structure.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION
POLICIES AND SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Group employs a total of approximately 1,010
employees with the majority in the PRC. The Group
remunerates its employees largely based on the industrial
practice. The Company has adopted a share option
scheme on 13 July 2010, under which the Company may
grant options to eligible persons including directors and
employees. No share option was granted pursuant to the
scheme since its adoption.
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EXPOSURE TO FINANCIAL RISK AND RELATED
HEDGES

The Group utilises conservative strategies on its financial risk
management and the market risk is kept to minimum. With
the exception of the UK subsidiaries, all transactions and the
borrowings of the Group are primarily denominated in US
Dollar, Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi. The risk of foreign
exchange fluctuations is minimal. During the year, the Group
made use of the foreign exchange forward contract in order
to minimise the exchange rate risk as a result of fluctuation
in British Pound. Management will continue to monitor the
foreign exchange exposure and will take appropriate action
when necessary. As of 30 June 2011, the Group has entered
into certain foreign exchange forward contracts.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to the Group’s management and staff members
for their dedication and hard work, our customers for
their confidence and support for our products, and our
shareholders for their trust and support.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2011
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Biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP, is the Chairman and
founder of the Group. Dr. Chan is an executive Director of
the Company and holds directorship in various subsidiaries
of the Company. He is responsible for strategic planning,
corporate development and investment of the Group.
Dr. Chan has over 50 years of experience in the jewellery
industry. He is currently the President of the Hong Kong
Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers Association; Appointed
Member of the University Court of The HK University of
Science & Technology; Member of Product Promotion
Programme Committee of the HKTDC; as well as a member
of other trade associations. In community, charitable and
political involvements, Dr. Chan is the Permanent Honorary
Director of Friends of Hong Kong Association Ltd., and
Member of The Association of Chairmen of The Tung Wah
Group of Hospitals. Dr. Chan was appointed a committee
member of the City of Jiangmen Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since 2003; and the Executive
Vice President of Jiangmen Overseas Chinese Enterprise
Federation since 2006.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, has been with the Group for
over 35 years and is responsible for marketing and corporate
policy development of the Group. She has over 35 years'’
experience in jewellery design, product development,
production and marketing of the Group’s export business.
Ms. Cheng is the wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, joined the Group in 1995.
She is responsible for retail operation and the business
administration functions in the Group. Ms. Chan graduated
from University of California, Berkeley with a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics. Ms. Chan is a Graduate Gemologist
of the Gemological Institute of America. She is Charter
President of Zonta Club of Hong Kong II, actively involved in
the Zonta Community. She is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles.
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Mr. Chan Wai Lap, Victor, joined the Group in 2000. He
is responsible for all sales and marketing activities as well
as business development and investments of the Group.
Mr. Chan graduated from Babson College in Boston,
Massachusetts with a Bachelor of Science double major in
Entrepreneurial Studies and Finance. He worked in both
banking and manufacturing industry prior to joining the
Group. Mr. Chan is currently the Chairman of Entrepreneurs’
Organization Hong Kong, and the Vice Chairman of The
Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers Association. He
is also the Founding Chairman of the Youth Chapter of the
Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council. Mr. Chan is the son
of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cao Kuangyu, was appointed as a non-executive
director on 7 April 2010. Mr. Cao obtained his Bachelor of
Arts in Economics from the University of Hunan in 1981 and
Master of Science in Financial Management with the School
of Oriental and African Studies, University of London in
1998. Mr. Cao commenced a career in banking and joined
the Bank of China, Hunan Branch in 1981. He was promoted
to Deputy General Manager in 1993 and in February 1996,
he was transferred to the Singapore Branch of Bank of China
as Deputy General Manager until 1999. Mr. Cao returned
to China in September 1999 and joined the Citic Bank,
Shenzhen Branch as President until 2003. Mr. Cao came to
Hong Kong in September 2003 as Managing Director, Head
of Global Investment Banking Division, BOCI Asia Limited
until 2007.

Mr. Cao is an independent non-executive director of JLF
Investment Company Limited (formerly known as Applied
(China) Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 00472).
He is also an independent non-executive director of King
Stone Energy Group Limited (formerly known as Yun Sky
Chemical (International) Holdings Limited), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00663).
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Mr. Fang Gang, was appointed as a non-executive director
on 15 July 2010. Mr. Fang obtained his Bachelor’s Degree
from the School of Engineering, Xi‘an Jiaotong University in
1982 and a Master’s Degree from the School of Engineering,
Xi'an Jiaotong University in 1988. He has over 20 years
experience in the metallurgical industry. In 1988, Mr. Fang
joined China Minmetals Corporation (“Minmetals”). From
1995 to 1999, Mr. Fang was with Minmetals Australia Pty
Limited. Commencing July 1999, Mr. Fang is the General
Manager of China National Metal Products Co Ltd, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Minmetals.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 25 April 2005. Mr.
Yu is a businessman who has been actively engaged in the
construction business both in the public and private sectors
in Hong Kong for the last 30 years. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Other
than his working experience in managing a construction
company, he is also actively involved in the community
services for the community of Hong Kong and several
advisory bodies of Hong Kong Government for over 27 years
and subsequently awarded as an unofficial Justice of the
Peace by the Hong Kong Government in the year 1989 and
awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in the year 2007.

Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 7 March 2008. Mr.
Chan has more than 30 years’ experience in logistics industry
and possess extensive experience in distribution. Mr. Chan
was a founder and director of various logistic companies. Mr.
Chan is a director of a private company engaging in logistics
and forwarding.
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Mr. Sze, Irons, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 2 October 2008. Mr. Sze graduated
with a Bachelor’s degree in Science from University of
Wisconsin, United States in 1985. Mr. Sze has extensive
experience in investment and corporate management and is
currently the chief executive officer and managing director
of a private company, Hang Tung Resources Holding Limited,
and holds directorship in various private companies. Mr.
Sze is an executive member of the Beijing Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also
the vice-chairman of Hunan Province Youth Federation and
the vice president of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association
of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the Council and
Court of Lingnan University (2008 to 2011) and elected as a
member of Election Committee of the Chief Executive of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (2007 to 2012).

Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee of the Board on 7 April 2010. Mr. Cheung
is currently the Chief Financial Officer of China Weaving
Materials Holdings Limited, a private company. He has
over 20 years of experience in accounting, finance and
administration and has held senior positions in multinational
companies. He obtained his MBA from University of
Technology, Sydney, Australia and is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

From March 2009 to July 2011, he was a part-time tutor at
the Open University of Hong Kong. From March 2004 to
November 2007, Mr. Cheung was an executive director of
Sun Innovation Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, and was also the Chief Financial Officer
from March 2007 to February 2008. He was an independent
director of LJ International Inc., a company listed on
NASDAQ from June 2007 to October 2007. From January
2001 to December 2003, Mr. Cheung was a director of e-Lux
(Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary of e-Lux Corporation, in
charge of value-added telecommunications services in Hong
Kong, Taiwan and China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Gwon Hing, Edward, joined in 1998, is
currently the General Manager of Continental Jewellery
(Mfg,) Limited. Mr. Wong has over 30 years experience
in manufacturing, sales marketing and management in
jewellery industry. Mr. Wong is responsible for overall
development and management of Group's jewellery
business.

Mr. Choi Wing Cheong, Eric (FGA, DGA, FGAHK), joined
in 1987, is the Head of Group Operation. He has over 20
years of experience in application system implementation
and supply chain management in the jewellery industry.
He holds gemmologist qualification, and is a fellow of The
Gemmological Association of Great Britain, and professional
member of Gemmological Association of Hong Kong.
Currently, Mr. Choi oversees the daily operation, information
& technology, administration and human resources of the
Group. He is also in charge the implementation of ISO
Quality Management System.

Mr. Lee Yuk Keung, John, joined in 1976, is the Head
of Operation of Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Limited. Mr.
Lee has over 20 years of experience in managing jewellery
factories. He has extensive knowledge in all production
aspects as well as in logistic management. Currently, he
oversees the daily operations of the jewellery factories in
China.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. The Board considers
shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set
out in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “Code") of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) throughout the accounting year ended 30 June
2011, except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1
and A.4.1 which are explained in the following relevant
paragraphs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND THE
COMPANY’S PRACTICES

A.1. Board of Directors

An issuer should be headed by an effective board which
should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the issuer and be collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the issuer by directing and supervising the issuer’s
affairs. Directors should take decisions objectively in the
interests of the issuer.
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Regular Board meetings are held at approximately quarterly
intervals. In addition, special Board meetings will be held
when necessary. Attendance of individual Directors at Board
meetings and other board committee meetings during
financial year ended 30 June 2011 are as follows:

SRR ETRY
Meetings Attended / Held
ENZES FMZzES
EZg8R = =
Meetings of
Board Meetings of Remuneration
) Director Meeting  Audit Committee Committee
HITEE Executive Directors
PREEZEL - BBS * AF4HL Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles, BBS, JP 77 - -
B/t Ms Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley 777 - il
REHLE Ms Chan Wai Kei, Vicki 477 - -
BRIEN & Mr Chan Wai Lap, Victor 5/7 - -
FHITEE Non-executive Directors
ERTELE Mr Cao Kuangyu 5/5 - -
L i Mr Fang Gang* 1/5 - -
BUHHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
ZBEASE - BBS MBE - Mr Yu Shiu Tin, Paul, BBS, MBE, JP 5/5 2/2 171
AFat
BRIFRE S Mr Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 5/5 22 11
WRERLE Mr Sze Irons 5/5 212 1/1
REEBEL Mr Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 5/5 22 -

* RERER_Z-ZTFLATHRE
RERFRITES -

*  Mr Fang Gang, was appointed as Non-executive Director on 15 July
2010.
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Directors are consulted to include matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled at least
14 days in advance to provide sufficient notice to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notice will be given.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Minutes of the Board, the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee are duly kept and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

Minutes of the Board and Board Committees have recorded
in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and
the Board Committees, decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views expressed.
Draft and final versions of minutes of the Board are sent to
all Directors for their comment and records respectively.

Should Directors need independent professional advice, the
Board will appoint professional advisors to render the advice.
The costs associated with such professional services will be
borne by the Company.

According to the current Board practice, any material
transaction, which involves a conflict of interest for a
substantial shareholder or a Director, will be considered and
dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no material
interest in the transaction will be presented at such board
meeting.
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A.2. Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

There are two key aspects of the management of every
issuer — the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of the issuer’s business. There should be a
clear division of these responsibilities at the board level to
ensure a balance of power and authority, so that power is
not concentrated in any one individual.

Code Provision A.2.1. provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles is the Chairman of the
Company. Dr. Chan oversees the direction of the Group and
also provides leadership for the Board. He ensures that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the
Board in a timely manner. Dr. Chan is also responsible to
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at Board meetings and that all Directors receive adequate
information, which must be complete and reliable, in a
timely manner. Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms Cheng Siu Yin,
Shirley.

Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley is the Managing Director of the
Company. She is responsible for day-to-day management
and the marketing activities of the Group. Ms Cheng is the
wife of Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles.

Although the Company does not have a post of chief
executive officer, the Board considers that there is adequate
segregation of duties within the Board to ensure a balance
of power and authority.
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A.3. Board Composition

The Board should have a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the issuer. The board should ensure that changes to its
composition can be managed without undue disruption. The
board should include a balanced composition of executive
and non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) so that there is a strong independent
element on the board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgment. Non-executive directors should be of
sufficient calibre and number for their views to carry weight.

As at 30 June 2011, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors, namely Dr. Chan Sing Chuk Charles, Ms. Cheng
Siu Yin Shirley, Ms. Chan Wai Kei Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai
Lap Victor; two Non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Cao
Kuangyu and Fang Gang; four Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yu Shiu Tin Paul, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen,
Derek, Mr. Sze Irons and Mr. Cheung Chi Fai, Frank. All
Directors are expressly identified by categories of Executive
Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors, in all corporate communications that
disclose the names of Directors of the Company.

Dr. Chan is the husband of Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley and
Ms. Chan Wai Kei Vicki and Mr. Chan Wai Lap Victor is the
daughter and son, respectively, of Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng.
Ms. Chan Wai Kei Vicki is sister of Mr. Chan Wai Lap Victor.

Biographies which include relationships of Directors are
set out in pages 14 to 18 of the annual report, which
demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
gualifications among members of the Board.
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A.4. Appointment, Re-election and Removal

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors to the
board. There should be plans in place for orderly succession
for appointments to the board. All directors should be
subject to re-election at least once every three years on a
rotation basis. An issuer must explain the reasons for the
resignation or removal of any director.

Code Provision A.4.1.provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company do not have a specific term of
appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at least once every three years in accordance with
articles 115(A) and 115(D) of the articles of association of the
Company. The Board considers that the deviation from Code
Provision A.4.1. is not material as Non-executive Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in view
of the small number of total directors of the Company, the
Directors will consider to adopt the Code Provision should
the number of Directors increase substantially.

The Directors consider that it is not necessary to have a
nomination committee for the time being. The Directors will
review this from time to time and will establish a nomination
should there be a need.

A proposal for the appointment of a new Director will be
considered and reviewed by the Board. All candidates must
be able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director should also meet
the independent criteria set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.
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A.5. Responsibilities of Directors

Every director is required to keep abreast of his responsibilities
as a director of an issuer and of the conduct, business activities
and development of that issuer. Given the essential unitary
nature of the board, non-executive directors have the same
duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties as executive
directors.

Every newly appointed Director of the Company is ensured
to have a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group and that he/she is fully aware of
his/her responsibilities under statue and common law, the
Listing Rules, applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the business governance policies of the Group. The
Directors are continually updated with legal and regulatory
developments, business and strategic development of the
Group to enable the discharge of their responsibilities.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
are highly skilled professionals with expertise and experience
in the field of accounting, financial management and
business. All Independent Non-executive Directors take
an active role in Board meetings to bring in independent
judgment to bear on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards
of conducts. They scrutinize the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and
monitor the reporting of performance. They also take the
lead where potential conflicts of interest arise and serve
the audit and remuneration committees. The Company has
received written confirmation from all the Independent Non-
executive Directors concerning their independence. The
Board considers all of them are independent.
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Every Director is aware that he/she should give sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. All Directors have
confirmed, following enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in Model
Code throughout the year ended 30 June 2011.

A.6. Supply of and Access to Information

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information in such form and of such quality
as will enable them to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities as directors of an
issuer.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying
board papers are sent in full to all Directors in a timely
manner and at least 3 days before the intended date of a
Board or Board Committee meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company
Secretary that they have an obligation to supply the Board
and Board Committees with adequate information in a
timely manner to enable it to make informed decisions.
The information supplied must be complete and reliable.
The Board and each Director shall have separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers,
minutes and related materials. Where queries are raised by
Directors, steps are taken to respond as promptly and fully as
possible.
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B.1. The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure

An issuer should disclose information relating to its directors’
remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters.
There should be a formal and transparent procedure for
setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and for
fixing the remuneration packages for all directors. Level
of remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain
the directors needed to run the company successfully, but
companies should avoid paying more than is necessary for
this purpose. No director should be involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with specific written terms of reference as set out in Code
Provisions B.1.3 (a) to (f) of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for making recommendations
to the Board regarding the Company’s remuneration
policy, and for the formulation and review of the specific
remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and senior
executives of the Group.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Independent Non-executive Directors. This Committee is
chaired by Mr Yu Shiu Tin, Paul. The other members are Ms.
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, Mr. Chan Ping Kuen, Derek and Mr.
Sze Irons.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year
ended 30 June 2011 to discuss remuneration related matters
and review the remuneration policy of the Group.

Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments of 2011 are
set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient
resources, including access to professional advice, to
discharge its duties if considered necessary.
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C.1. Financial Reporting

The board should present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the company’s performance
position and prospects.

Management has provided such explanation and
information to the Board as would enable the Board to
make an informed assessment of the financial and other
information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records and preparing financial statements of each financial
period, which shall give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow for that
period. In preparing the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2011, the Directors have made judgements
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

A statement by the auditor about its responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 47 to
49 of the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2011.

The Board'’s responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extend to annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to regulators as well as information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.
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C.2. Internal Controls

The Board should ensure that the issuer maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholder’s
investment and the issuer’s assets.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness through the
Audit Committee. The Board requires management to
establish and maintain sound and effective internal controls.
Evaluation of the Group’s internal controls covering financial,
operational compliance controls and risk management
functions had been done on an ad hoc basis. Review of
internal controls on different systems will be done on a
systematic rotational basis based on the risk assessments of
the operations and controls.

C.3. Audit Committee

The Board should establish formal and transparent
arrangements for considering how it will apply the financial
reporting and internal control principles and for maintaining
an appropriate relationship with the company’s auditors.
The audit committee established by an issuer pursuant to the
Listing Rules should have clear terms of reference.
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The Company has established an Audit Committee with
specific written terms of reference which states clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have included the duties set out in Code
Provisions C.3.3 (a) to (n) of the Code, with appropriate
modifications where necessary. The Audit Committee has
made available its terms of reference, explaining its role and
the authority delegated to it by the Board.

As set out in the terms of reference, the Audit Committee
is responsible for reviewing the financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, annual report, financial
statements and interim report.

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr.
Cheung Chi Fai, Frank.

As issues raised by the Committee have been addressed
by management. The work and findings of the Committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year, no issues
brought to the attention of management and the Board
were of sufficient importance to require disclosure in the
Annual Report.

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s proposal
for the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the Company’s
independent auditors for 2012.

For the year ended 30 June 2011, save as the auditor’s
remuneration as disclosed in note 8 to the financial
statement, the Group has paid HK$197,000 in relation to the
non-audit services (including taxation and other reporting
services).



Annual Report 2011 “E i

Corporate Governance Report m {1t E8R

ENLZB e R EERLH AR
WERTF BRZESEHLHL
sk HRERESHETR K
AERENEREEEREZEES
BKE  UHBARKNEBEEREAK
fERCERZ A o

ENZEQUEARARRRIIZ
HBEVZAEERA -

ERZEERNBTERERDER
HERER ERBUZBEZE
8o

D.1. EERB AL

BITARE —BLANEES
R OINEFHEEFTSRRENSE
He BEERAERKRBITAELRE
Al NERAREE R E B E L IR
ABHEFEHE

EECTREHIEARB ZEER
B - EERNMIEHIAKE IR M
EREREREERNEE %75 -

BEFSRAEEERITHRBRERT
BEER  RSHEEEZENG
TiEM 2E3] - KRR EEERR
EEgER  URKKRARFNEL
EAAR % 3k 5T SZAE{AT A7 BT T ER
GEFSHESF T HEER -

AREEREBTBEEERRE
FE-EECRERRAERR
B ARERAE S — EE A A
EEEE -

Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept by the
company secretary. Draft and final versions of minutes of the
Audit Committee meetings are sent to all members of the
Committee for their comments and record respectively, in
both cases within a reasonable time after the meeting.

The Audit Committee does not have a former partner of the
Company's existing auditors.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources,
including the advice of independent auditors, to discharge its
duties.

D.1. Management Functions

An issuer should have a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved to the board for its decision. The board
should give clear directions to management as to the matters
that must be approved by the board before decisions are
made on behalf of the issuer.

The Board is responsible for formulating overall strategy,
monitoring and controlling the performance of the Group
whilst managing the Group'’s business is the responsibility of
the management.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given
clear directions as to the powers of the management,
in particular, with respect to the circumstances where
management shall report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Company has established schedules of Matters Reserved
to the Board for Decision. The Board shall review those
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.
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D.2. Board Committees

Board committees should be formed with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with the committees’
authority and duties.

Apart from Audit Committee (particulars are disclosed
under C.3) and Remuneration Committee (particulars
are disclosed under B.1), there are no other standing
board committees established by the Board. Where board
committees are established to deal with matters, the Board
shall prescribe sufficiently clear terms of reference to enable
such Committees to discharge their functions properly. The
terms of reference of board Committees shall require such
Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so.

E.1. Effective Communication

The board should endeavour to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings or other general meetings to communicate
with shareholders and encourage their participation.

At the 2010 Annual General Meeting, a separate resolution
was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate
issue, including the re-elections of Directors.

The Chairman of the Board and the chairmen of the Audit
and Remuneration Committees shall attend the 2011 Annual
General Meeting to answer questions of shareholders.
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E.2. Voting by Poll

The issuer should regularly inform shareholders of the
procedure for voting by poll and ensure compliance with the
requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing
Rules.

All the resolutions put to the vote of a general meeting will
be taken by poll pursuant to the requirement under Rule
13.39(4) of the Listing Rules.

The chairman of the Annual General Meeting will explain
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll at the
commencement of the Annual General Meeting.

The Company will engage Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Ltd to be the scrutineer and ensure the
votes are properly counted.

After the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, the
poll results will be published on the websites of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and at the website
www.equitynet.com.hk/hk513 on the business day
following the Annual General Meeting.
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The Chairman of a meeting shall at the commencement of
the meeting ensure that an explanation is provided to the
shareholders in relation to:

1. the procedure for demanding a poll by shareholders;
and

2. the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then
answer any questions from shareholders whenever
voting by way of a poll is required.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has made specific enquiry with all Directors
and all of them confirmed that, for the financial year
ended 30 June 2011, they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code.
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 18 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 30 June 2011 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 50 to 194.

An interim dividend of HK$0.001 per ordinary share was
declared on Monday, 21 February 2011 and paid on Friday,
18 March 2011. The Board of Directors does not recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 30 June
2011 (2010: HK$0.001).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in the property, plant and

equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movements in the investment property of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY

Details of the principal property held for investment purposes
are set out on page 195 of the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 36 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 30 June 2011, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, as computed in accordance with Section 79B
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$216,293,000 (2010: HK$217,161,000).
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
196.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$127,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 58% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 33%. The largest supplier and the five largest suppliers
accounted for 36% and 67%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

As far as the directors of the Company are aware, neither
the directors, their respective associates nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
Chan Wai Kei, Vicki
Chan Wai Lap, Victor

Non-executive directors:
Cao Kuangyu
Fang Gang
(appointed on 15 July 2010)

Independent non-executive directors:
Yu Shiu Tin, Paul

Chan Ping Kuen, Derek

Sze Irons

Cheung Chi Fai, Frank

In accordance with Articles 115(A) and 115(D) of the Articles
of Association, Ms. Chan Wai Kei, Vicki, Mr. Yu Shiu Tin,
Paul and Mr. Sze, Irons shall retire from office by rotation and
all of them are eligible for re-election at the annual general
meeting.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Each of the four independent non-executive directors has
submitted written confirmation in respect of the factors
set out in Rule 3.13 of The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) concerning
his independence. The Board considers each of the four
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 14 to
18 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Dr. Chan Sing Chuk, Charles has a service contract with the
Company for an indefinite period, which may be terminated
by either party by giving three months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company on 13
July 2010. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide eligible
persons with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company and to encourage eligible persons to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole. The Scheme will provide the Company with flexible
means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible persons.

Details of the Scheme are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements, no
director had a material interest in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year.
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EERZ Name of Director

BREZ Chan Sing Chuk, Charles

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2011, the interests and short positions of the
directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code") were as set out below:

YN EARATRERT
SREEETZEER EN=pilnd

Number of ordinary shares of Percentage of

HK$0.01 each in the Company the Company'’s

B ARER ARER RikkER issued share
Personal interest Corporate interest ~ Family interest capital
- 5,201,894,033 - 166.285%

(FF3E1) (Note 1)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

ZHEBRER(E) SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)
LN ERDRAE#T
EREEBTZERR REBDL
Number of ordinary shares of Percentage of
HK$0.01 each in the Company the Company'’s
B AR ARHER EN 5 issued share
EEpE Name of Director Personal interest Corporate interest ~ Family interest capital
B/ Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 5,201,894,033 - 166.285%
(HFET) (Note 1)
PRI Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 200,000 - - 0.006%
BRIESL Chan Wai Lap, Victor 2,700,000 - - 0.086%
(4 E
(A£5)
NEER
BARER Debenture RixER
Personal (principal amount) Family
EEyer Name of Director interest Corporate interest Interest

BRE= Chan Sing Chuk, Charles

#

AV

L
=1
=L

Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley

- HK$383.17 million -
(H552) (Note 2)

- HK$383.17 million -
(H3£2) (Note 2)
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BIaE1 - 2SR () RIB L/ Nk Note 1: Such interests are held as to (i) 5,063,395,220 shares by Tamar
tTt2&E%AE 2 —KAATamar Investments Group Limited (“Tamar Investments”), which is a
Investments Group Limited company wholly owned by Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin,
([Tamar Investments]) # & Shirley and include interests in the consideration Shares and
5,063,395,220 i% fi% 17 » W B & the conversion Shares to be issued under the Hongzhuang
REBEAHSBRNEEER Gold Mine Acquisition as defined and disclosed in the circular
AR HBPA-ZZE—ZF~A of the Company dated 25 June 2010 (the “Circular”); and (ii)
Z+EB R (R PER 138,498,813 Shares by Famous Key Holdings Limited (“Famous
M ER) BT 2 RER D RIRk Key”), which is a company wholly owned by Dr. Chan and
iz iz RGiNVARELSE represent interest in the Conversion Shares (as defined and
BB 2 —ZFK A AFamous Key disclosed in the Circular) under the Famous Key Convertible
Holdings Limited ([ Famous Key ) Note (as defined and disclosed in the Circular). Dr. Chan and
F57H138,498,813k fixfn + W 1K Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, both being Directors, are the
KA Famous Key AT E =& (R, directors of Tamar Investments.

BEKPTE 3 R B ER)IE T 2 HA R
e (KRBT E S RARER) °
RARERRE T RE/ R
/4 Tamar Investments 2 & o
Note 2: Such interest is held by (i) Tamar Investments in the convertible

Miet2 - 225w () Tamar Investments note in HK$325 million principal amount to be issued under
UREA S R IE S EpTE the Hongzhuang Gold Mine Acquisition; and (i) Famous Key in
11 2 A & 58 /325,000,000 %% the Famous Key Convertible Note in HK$58.17 million principal
TTZABBREERE ki) amount (issued on 30 March 2011 under the Macarthur
Famous Key A (1R# Macarthur Minerals Limited acquisition). Tamar Investments is wholly
Minerals Limited W B EHM = owned by Dr. Chan and Ms. Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley as referred
T-——F=ZA=+RH%T)EA® to in Note 1 and Famous Key is wholly owned by Dr. Chan as
#158,170,0007% 7T < Famous referred to in Note 1.

Keyr] #2 % Z£ 1% 5 A ° Tamar
Investments B3 R 18+ K B8/ e 2z
T2 EHA (1 ATiRa) -
i Famous Key AR B L2 E%HH
(AR EE 1 Frigad) -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Except as disclosed above, at the reporting date, none of
the directors or their respective associates had any personal,
family, corporate or other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of
Part XV of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate granted to any
director or their respective spouse or children under 18
years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire such
rights in any other corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2011, no person, other than Dr. Chan Sing
Chuk, Charles and Madam Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley, whose
interests are set out in the section “Directors’ interests and
short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, had registered an interest in 5% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected party transactions, which also
constituted as related party transactions are set out in note
41 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company'’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established
in accordance with the requirements of the Code of Best
Practice, for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Group. The audit committee has discussed
the Group’s accounting policies and basis adopted, the
financial and internal control process of the Group and has
reviewed the interim and annual financial statements. As of
the date of this report, the audit committee comprises the
four independent non-executive directors of the Company.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the previous financial years
since 2004 were audited by Grant Thornton (“GTHK"), now
known as JBPB & Co.. Due to a merger of the businesses of
GTHK and BDO Limited (“BDO") to practise in the name of
BDO, GTHK resigned and BDO was appointed as auditor of
the Company effective from 1 December 2010. The financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2011 were audited by
BDO.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as
auditor of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 September 2011
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2218 2239

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
B35 ¢ +852 2218 8288 HETHEER1115E
8K : +852 2218 2239 KERA251

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Continental Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) set out
on pages 50 to 194, which comprise the consolidated and
the Company statements of financial position as at 30 June
2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of cash flows and
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 30 June 2011 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin

Practising Certificate Number P0O5035

Hong Kong, 26 September 2011
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2011 2010
Hiat FAET FEr
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(&31)
(restated)
Wi Revenue 6 973,501 1,031,708
HEKK Cost of sales (859,937) (930,948)
EA Gross profit 113,564 100,760
SHE R D HAAR Selling and distribution costs (22,061) (18,097)
TBREHR Administrative expenses (71,258) (72,825)
Hipgass /(Fx) Other operating income/(expenses) 112 (2,579)
REMENTHEZHE Change in fair value of
investment property 17 12,791 6,608
LARSHAD A ELRE 2 SR Share-based compensation 35 = (53,008)
REEE £ 2EF,(BB)  Profit/(Loss) from operations 33,148 (39,141)
AR Finance costs 7 (2,346) (2,231)
g NG Share of results of associates (774) (260)
e RSB RS Share of results of jointly controlled entities 5,359 52,821
BRFTSE ANRF Profit before income tax 35,387 11,189
Fii5 RS Income tax expense (5,646) (6,594)
REE A Profit for the year 29,741 4,595
Hith 2wl Other comprehensive income
NS eREE Change in fair value of available-for-sale
ZATEEE)  FE financial assets, net (23,094) (1,518)
KAt &SR & ERER Reclassification from equity to profit
HiEmEN Y EE R or loss on impairment of available-
for-sale financial assets 7,864 -
MEBINETS - BEE Q) Exchange difference on translation
WS i of foreign operations, associates
and jointly controlled entities 16,514 5,635
B AR ZERLKEHE  Exchange fluctuation reserve released
upon deregistration of subsidiaries (447) -
FANEMEEW - BIEEH  Other comprehensive income for the year,
ST including reclassification adjustments
and net of tax 837 4,117
FREERHEE Total comprehensive income for the year 30,578 8,712
AL ERER : Profit for the year attributable to:
RARHEA AN Owners of the Company 10 33,453 4,812
JEFE IR Non-controlling interests (3,712) 217)
REEEA Profit for the year 29,741 4,595
EiE2HEREARE Total comprehensive income attributable to:
RAREAA Owners of the Company 34,290 8,929
JEFE R Non-controlling interests (3,712) 217)
30,578 8,712
FRARDREE AL Earnings per share for profit
a2 B IREBF| attributable to the owners of
the Company during the year 12
—ER — Basic HK1.06 cent &4l HK0.15 cent /Bl
—#% - Diluted HK1.06 cent 81l HKO.15 cent &1Ll
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30/06/2011 30/06/2010 01/07/2009
Hiat FET & BT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(&231) (&251)
(restated) (restated)
EERAE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FRBEE Non-current assets
M HiE KRR Property, plant and equipment 15 52,298 49,340 439,519
T fE R Land use rights 16 3,813 3,920 5,200
BEME Investment property 17 446,500 410,000 -
NI P T Interests in associates 19 2,333 2,821 3,051
RERFHEE Interests in jointly controlled entities 20 417,326 320,466 216,382
AR EZEmEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 137,718 28,790 12,974
RHEW IR Long term receivables 22 = - -
EXERIBREE Deferred tax assets 33 9,326 9,217 9,217
1,069,314 824,554 686,343
MEEE Current assets
T8 Inventories 23 267,829 275,961 295,492
B SR IE Trade receivables 24 116,484 113,375 106,942
BAFIE - ek Prepayments, deposits
H el z08 and other receivables 9,720 19,452 29,177
R AR IR 2 BN ERER 5 Current portion of long
term receivables 22 - - 1,305
AAFER A& Financial assets at fair value
ZERMEE through profit or loss 25 15,235 11,517 10,324
@TE%@IE Derivative financial instruments 28 126 - =
JEL B & A B 508 Due from associates 19 18 202 330
e — A ﬂh%ﬂgﬁ‘g?ﬁ( Due from a jointly controlled entity 20 141 110 -
RekBeEH Cash and cash equivalents 26 49,867 153,940 45,759
459,420 574,557 489,329
P ARELEEE Assets classified as held for sale = = 838,000
459,420 574,557 1,327,329
TEEE Current liabilities
Ul Trade payables 27 (143,522) (147,645) (157,142)
E‘rﬂlﬁﬁn IE&E‘E%EFH Other payables and accruals (41,859) (44,920) (62,883)
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 28 = (498) (170)
AT R Provision for tax (16,367) (10,180) (11,623)
AN NI E Due to associates 19 = (335) (288)
%H*ﬁﬁﬁ?%l B23JE  Due to ajointly controlled entity 20 (14) (5) =
RITER—FER Bank loans, secured 29 (235,139) (178,994) (682,896)
(436,901) (382,577) (915,002)
BY| AFEHEC BE Liabilities associated with assets
BHzAE classified as held for sale = = (9,628)
(436,901) (382,577) (924,630)
nEBEEFE Net current assets 22,519 191,980 402,699
BEERADER Total assets less current liabilities 1,091,833 1,016,534 1,089,042




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position m

As at 30 June 2011

RZE——FRB=+H

A BB R

30/06/2011 30/06/2010 01/07/2009
HizE FET FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%) (&51))
(restated) (restated)
E =L Non-current liabilities
FEEHIESER Loans from non-controlling interests 30 = (1,125) (1,125)
AEHERE Promissory note = = (42,000)
ANES S NETE E = Due to ultimate holding company 31 (7,877) (7,877) =
EElESH Convertible note 32 (50,802) = =
FELERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities 33 (16) (16) (16)
(58,695) (9,018) (43,141)
BEEFE Net assets 1,033,138 1,007,516 1,045,901
B EQUITY
ERFEBA Equity attributable to the
FEfhRE S owners of the Company
BETRA Issued capital 34 31,283 31,283 31,283
G Reserves 36 1,005,520 972,048 916,367
FRIRE Proposed dividends = 3,128 96,977
1,036,803 1,006,459 1,044,627
IR Non-controlling interests (3,665) 1,057 1,274
TEREE Total equity 1,033,138 1,007,516 1,045,901
FREEE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
EZE Director
BB Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
EE Director
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2011 2010
it FETT FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
AN =N P e Interests in subsidiaries 18 644,371 626,399
BN B 2 FERS Interests in associates 19 = =
644,371 626,399
RBEE Current assets
TERFIE - Re REM Prepayments, deposits
FEWRIE and other receivables 319 178
AT EFAERZ Financial assets at fair value
TRIEE through profit or loss 25 1,361 =
A =PNGIEe Due from subsidiaries 18 173,772 141,317
JE Uy — It & A B FOR Due from an associate 19 8 8
RekReEH Cash and cash equivalents 26 76 83
175,536 141,586
piEI=RE Current liabilities
H b e FIE & BT B Other payables and accruals (492) (1,439)
TRIBEE Provision for tax (1,370) (745)
(1,862) (2,184)
RBEEFE Net current assets 173,674 139,402
HEEBRBERS Total assets less current liabilities 818,045 765,801
ERBAR Non-current liabilities
Bz ESE Convertible note 32 (50,802) =
BEFE Net assets 767,243 765,801
g EQUITY
BEITIRAR Issued capital 34 31,283 31,283
] Reserves 36 735,960 731,390
FRAR S Proposed final dividend - 3,128
=B Total equity 767,243 765,801
FRESZ Chan Sing Chuk, Charles
BE Director
R /)N 3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley
EF Director
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2011 2010
A% FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Z51)
(restated)
Re¥pnineg Cash flows from operating activities
BRETE T AR A Profit before income tax 35,387 11,189
B THPEREE : Adjustments for:
HEMNA Finance costs 2,346 2,231
EEBEARRE Share of results of associates 774 260
LR EREEE Share of results of jointly controlled entities (5,359) (52,821)
SARR IR BT 2 S Share-based compensation - 53,008
nE  BERRERE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 6,845 6,342
TR Amortisation of land use rights 107 78
(el Bad debts recovery = (1,469)
FERE Provision for inventories 1,599 -
B oRNGERE Provision for trade receivables 768 668
KAl ESREERER Reclassification from equity to profit or loss on
HEREN B ER impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 7,864 =
HE THERE e Gain on disposal of land use rights - (616)
LENE  BERXELZ Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property,
Big/(ks) plant and equipment 124 (477)
KB LESHEENTATA Loss on derivative contracts for acquisition
BHER of available-for-sale financial assets 1,049 =
[IEUNGL: Al e Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries (4,609) =
REMELATEZWE Change in fair value of investment property (12,791) (6,608)
FEE R B Write back of loans from non-controlling interests (1,125) =
TRREEECERE, Fair value loss on redemption option
ATHEER of convertible note 259 -
TES BT ANTEE) /BE Fair value (gain)loss on derivative finandial instruments (624) 443
BEAS B LA Operating profit before working capital changes 32,614 12,728
HFERD Decrease in inventories 9,044 19,531
B Sl ER D,/ () Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables 4,478 (5,632)
BFE  ReREM Decrease in prepayments, deposits
MR D and other receivables 5,716 4671
NATEHAER & REE Increase in financial assets at fair value
10 through profit or loss (2357 (1,193)
BB NT] 7 58 () /R (Increase)/Decrease in balances with associates (151) 175
EHERHIER 28R Increase in balances with jointly controlled entities (22) (105)
B REMERNFERESTERRD Decrease in trade and other payables and accruals (15,002) (37,088)

ITES BT A Increase in derivative financial instruments = (115)
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BE-T——FAAS+AILEE
2011 2010
it FET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(E31)
(restated)
GEEL/(FTB) 284 Cash generated from/(used in) operations 34,320 (7,028)
EFFIE Interest paid (6:480) (6,562)

ﬁﬂxﬁ Dividend paid (6.256) (100,105)
EE/(B) BERIER Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) 432 (8,037)
BEEREL/(FR) ZALT8 Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 22,016 (121,732)
REZHRENE Cash flows from investing activities
fﬁ%% e Aditions to property, plant and equipment 42(b) (5,158) (4,018)

ENEARENEL Additions to property under development

?é‘fi:%q“?%% classified as investment property (18,601) (7,672)
HEME « BERXE Proceeds from disposal of property,

FrisHA plant and equipment - 1827
HE-—BRAMEMETE Proceeds from disposal of an investment property - 838,000
BEHNESHEAE Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (82,553) (17,334)
KEHEAR (HRER Acquisition of subsidiary (net of cash

RERBLER) and cash equivalents acquired) 40.1 1,414 -
L& T AR ETE Proceeds from disposal of land use rights - 1818
BRRAREYE Receipt of long term receivables - 1,305
R - RN ERAERE Proceeds from deregistration of a jointly controlled entity - 498
MR -BAREHEE RE Increase in investment in a jointly controlled entity - (5)
ENERT-REREERS Increase in loans to a jointly controlled entity (74,500) (49,500)
REED(FR)/EERETE Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (179,398) 764,919
Fﬂﬁ/ﬁbfﬂéuni Cash flows from financing activities
REERAT Advance from ultimate holding company - 7,877
%ﬁiﬁﬂﬁg%ﬂ New bank loans 57,127 -
[ERBRITER Repayment of bank loans (982) (503,902)
EEALZER Repayment of promissory note - (42,000)
BEEDEL/(MA)BEFE Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 56,145 (538,025)
BERREZE2 (D) /LT Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (101,237) 105,162
ENRERREER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 153,940 45,759
NEEZEH FE  FH Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net (2,836) 3,019
ERVRERREER Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 49,867 153,940
BERREER GBI Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
He Rk Cash and bank balances 49,867 84,940
RHESEN Short term time deposits - 69,000

49,867 153,940
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RIFIES \EfES
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

FAEE  EEEE
Non-
controlling Total

Inferests equity

BT RO AREE UK Eiky R
kx  BBE B 0 RE EhREE 0 BB BMEE REEN RERE &
Share Non- Exchange  Investment
Isued — premium  Warrant distrbutable ~ Other fluctuation revaluation ~ Retained  Proposed
capital  account  reseve  resenve resene reseve resene  profits  dividends Total
AT TEt  TEr  TEr  FEn TEr  TEr TR fEn TEn TEr TEn
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
(&51) (1) (&)
(restated) (restated) (restated)
REZENELA-BZEH  Balanceat 1 July 2009 31283 190,743 - ABR6 B779 10376 621 449800 9977 1,044,627 1,214 1,045,901
EHZEENERHRE  Payment of 2009 final

REhIkRE and specia dividend - - - - - - - - (%697 (96977) - (96977)
“T-RERERE Interim 2010 didend - - - - - - - B - 31 - By
WRAREE 2 5H Recognition of share-based

LR compensation - - 53008 - - - - - - 53008 - 53008
HEFEALRS Transaction with owners = - 5308 = = = - (3128 (9697 (@7.097) - (47007)
AEREH Proftfor the year - - - - - - - 481 - 48 Q) 45%
E2EE Other comprehensive income:

FERIERE BEAE  Bchange differences on translation
RERBHEESESS  of the financil statements
FEEZENER of foreign apevations, associates
and jointly controlled entities - - - - - 563 - - - 5% - 56
ARiEcEEE Change i fai value of avalable-

INTEWD for-sale financial assets - - - - - - (1508) - - (1508) - (1518)
2ENEES Total comprehensive income - - - - - 5EB (1518 4812 -89 o) 8m
RE-Z-SERGRE  Proposed final 2010 dividend - - - - - = - (318 318 = = =
RZE-TERA=TA  Balanceat 30 June 2010

L5 () (asrestated) 31,283 190,743 53008 273606* (8779 16,011 (897)% 448356* 3128 1,006459 1,057 1,007,516
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B EE

HRiEE  ERiE
Non-
LB controling Totel
Equity attrbutable to the owners of the Company interests equity
B8 Rt ARER  FAAK TARZE EdRD  nE
BE o EEE RE  BE EAEE BEEE  BE EMRE RER RIRE &
Share Non- Convertible ~ Exchange  Investment
Issued ~ premium ~ Warrant distributable ~ Other noteequity fluctuation ~revaluation  Retained  Proposed
apitdl  acount  reseve  resere  resenve  reseve  reseve  reseve  profits  dividends Total
B e T T B o o T Tt
HESO00  HKSO00 ~ HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO0  HKSO0  HKSO00
RIE-BECA-A7ER:  Bdanceat !y 2010
sl As originaly tated 183 190743 53008 23606 (8779) 16,011 (897) 447,266 3128 1,005,369 1057 1006426
FOEESHENENE  Adusmentonadoptonof
Bl amendments o KAS 12 - - - - - -1 - W -1
HED] As esated 183 190743 53008 23606 (8779) 16,011 (897) 448,356 3128 1006459 1057 1007516
TERE Payment of 2010 find dividend - - - - - - - B (1 - B
5-EaEks Interim 2011 dhicend - - - - - - (g (3.129) - B
WE-TEMBARHEAT)  Acuision of asubsiary rote 40.) - - - - - - - - (1)
NELTHHAR(NE02)  Detegstatonof sbsiars note 402) - - - - - - - - )
BAMERSEOR) bseof converble ote ote 3) - - - - - - -0
AR Transaction with owners - - - 2310 - - (B8 (8 (%) (100)  (4956)
AEE Proftfor the ear - = = = e - B - BB (M) wwm
EfREdE: Other comprehensie ncome:
TEBNH BERAR  Dhange diferences on tanston
LRERIERETAS ofthe firandal ttemerts
Mt EREE of foreign operaions, assocites
and joitl controlld entifes - - - - 1651 - E (11} - 1651
HELTBERR(HE02)  Deregitration of subsidiies rote40.) - - 5 - () - - ) -
ARLESHERAER  Redassficaton fom equty o proftor osson
HERENAEZER impament of avalable-orsale fnandal asels - - - - - T8 - T8 - T8
THIESHER Changeinfai vl of avaleble-or<ze
INTWDL financiaasets - - - - - (3w - (B - (3w
g3l ey Total comprehensive income - - - - 16067 (1530 B4 - UM (M) N
EHHBNAZEREE Anpropiaton fom other resene o
ATHIREE retned proft upon deegistaion of sbsidares - - - 338 - - - (33m - - - -
RoE--ERAZTAZER  Balanceat30une 2011 383 10743 S3008F 2336066 (53N 2300 3078 (tefn)r 4TS - 1036803 (3665 1033138

e ZERBBERERERAVBMBRF 2R
A f#151,005,520,000 870 (—E— T4

972,048,000/87T (&%) °

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$1,005,520,000 (2010: HK$972,048,000 (restated)) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Continental Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong.
The address of its registered office is Flats M & N, 1st Floor,
Kaiser Estate, Phase Ill, 11 Hok Yuen Street, Hunghom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the following
activities:

Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading of fine
jewellery and diamonds

Property investment
- Investment

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate
holding company is Tamar Investments Group Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The financial statements on pages 50 to 194 have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (""HKFRSs’’) which collective terms include all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations
(“Int") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA") and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial statements also
include the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 26
September 2011.
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2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

2.1

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2010

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following revision and amendment to
standards and interpretations issued by the HKICPA,
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s
financial statements for the annual period beginning
on 1 July 2010:

HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements
— Classification by
Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand

Clause
HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs
(Amendments) 2009

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
new/revised standards and interpretations has
no significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.1

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
July 2010 (continued)

HKAS 17 (Amendments) — Leases

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009, HKAS 17 has been amended in relation
to the classification of leasehold land. Before the
amendment to HKAS 17, the Group was required
to classify leasehold land as operating leases and to
present leasehold land as prepaid lease payments
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The amendment to HKAS 17 has removed such
a requirement and requires that the classification
of leasehold land should be based on the general
principles set out in HKAS 17, that is, whether or not
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of a leased asset have been transferred to
the lessee.

The Group has reassessed the classification of
unexpired leasehold land as at 1 July 2010 on the
basis of information existing at the inception of
those leases according to the transitional provision
in the amendment, and recognised the leasehold
land in Hong Kong as finance lease retrospectively.
Accordingly, the Group has reclassified these interests
from Leasehold land/Land use rights to Property,
plant and equipment. The corresponding amortisation
has also been reclassified to depreciation. These
amendments had no impact on the Group’s retained
profits and current year results and the effects of the
above changes are summarised below.
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FLtA-—HBERE)

BT ERIFE 17 (15 HKAS 17 (Amendments) — Leases (continued)
FIAR)—HE (&)
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE~NA=1+HL Consolidated statement of
FEZGERZE comprehensive income for the year
EE ended 30 June
FHE 1 b #E SRk > Decrease in amortisation of leasehold land (107) (136)
Y ET =N Increase in depreciation of property,
RAEITELE N plant and equipment 107 136
RAB=+HZ Consolidated statement of financial
REMEMIRR position as at 30 June
THE LR FEE Decrease in leasehold land, net (3,446) (3,547)
M - BE & Increase in property, plant and
R IFRE equipment, net 3,446 3,547
REDZERE Consolidated statement of
B AR 2R financial position at beginning of
the year
THE LR HEE Decrease in leasehold land, net (3,683)
M - BE &R Increase in property, plant and equipment, net
EInFEER 3,683
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.1

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective 1
July 2010 (continued)

HK Interpretation 5 — Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The Interpretation is a clarification of an existing
standard, HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. It sets out the conclusion reached by
the HKICPA that a term loan which contains a clause
which gives the lender the unconditional right to
demand repayment at any time shall be classified as a
current liability in accordance with paragraph 69(d) of
HKAS 1 irrespective of the probability that the lender
will invoke the clause without cause.

In order to comply with the requirements of
HK Interpretation 5, the Group has changed its
accounting policy on the classification of term loans
that contain a repayment on demand clause. Under
the new policy, term loans with clauses which give the
lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any
time are classified as current liabilities in the statement
of financial position. Previously such term loans were
classified in accordance with the agreed repayment
schedule unless the Group had breached any of the
loan covenants set out in the agreement as of the
reporting date or otherwise had reason to believe
that the lender would invoke its rights under the
immediate repayment clause within the foreseeable
future.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.1

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
July 2010 (continued)

HK Interpretation 5 — Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
(continued)

The new accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively by re-presenting the opening balances
at 1 July 2009, with consequential reclassification
adjustments to comparatives for the year ended 30
June 2010. The reclassification has had no effect on
reported profit or loss, total comprehensive income or
equity for any period presented.

Effect of adoption of HK Interpretation 5 on the
consolidated statement of financial position

—E2——F —ZT-FTF ZTITNF
~A=1+H ~A=t+H +tH—H
30/06/2011 30/06/2010 01/07/2009
FETT FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
i, Gaa) Increase/(Decrease) in
VinE =R Current liabilities
IRITER— A Bank loans, secured 34,000 11,494 541,633
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
RITER—AHEM  Bank loans, secured (34,000) (11,494)  (541,263)

B Ll BB N EH 8
REFZ2INZ R - RIEEFES
FPERIZE 1R FH B HRKR 25
— IR —EENAFLA—H
ZIEFAMBHIRRR

As a result of the above retrospective reclassification
and restatement, an additional consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 July 2009 is
presented in accordance with HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.2 Early adoption of Amendments to HKAS 12

Deferred Tax-Recovery of Underlying Assets

The HKICPA amended HKAS 12 Income Taxes to
introduce an exception to the existing principle for
the measurement of deferred tax assets or liabilities
arising on investment property measured at fair value.
Currently, HKAS 12 requires an entity to measure
the deferred tax relating to an asset depending on
whether the entity expects to recover the carrying
amount of the asset through use or sale. The
amendments to HKAS 12 introduce a rebuttable
presumption that an investment property is recovered
entirely through sale. This presumption is rebutted
if the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

At 30 June 2011, the Group had investment
property amounting to HK$446,500,000 (2010:
HK$410,000,000), representing its fair value in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The
Group'’s investment property is situated in Hong
Kong. In Hong Kong, land leases can typically be
renewed without a payment of a market-based
premium which is consistent with their reclassification
as finance leases under the amendment to HKAS
17. Given this, it is difficult to assert with a high
degree of confidence that the Group would consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time. Consequently,
as required by the amendment, the Group can re-
measure the deferred tax relating to the investment
property based on the rebuttable presumption that
it is recovered entirely by sale if this new policy had
always been applied. There is no tax consequence in
Hong Kong of a sale of the investment property as
there is currently no capital gain tax in Hong Kong.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.2 Early adoption of Amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax-Recovery of Underlying Assets

(continued)

This change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively by restating the opening balances at 1
July 2009 and 2010, with consequential adjustments
to comparatives for the year ended 30 June 2010. This
has resulted in a reduction in the amount of deferred
tax liabilities arising from fair value gain as follows:

& %5 “ITNE
AA=1H NA=TH +A—H
30/06/2011 30/06/2010 01/07/2009
FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
SEMEMRRE Effect of consolidated statement
258 of financial position
EERBEEERD Decrease in deferred tax liabilities (2,110) (1,090) =
RERFEM Increase in retained profits 2,110 1,090 =
GEEARRE Effect of consolidated statement
252 of comprehensive income
PSRBT Decrease in income tax expense (2,110) (1,090) -
FIREARBFE M Increase in basic earnings per share HK 0.06 centj&fll HK 0.03 cent /&l -
SREER AL Increase in diluted earnings per share ~ HK 0.06 cent il HK 0.03 cent &l -
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.3 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs
(Amendments)

HKAS 19
(Revised 2011)

HKAS 24
(Revised)

HKAS 27
(Revised 2011)

HKAS 28
(Revised 2011)

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments
to HKAS 1
(Revised)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
except for the amendments to
HKAS 27 and HKFRS 3!

Employee Benefits 4

Related Party Disclosures !

Separate Financial Statements *

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures 4

Disclosure — Transfers of
Financial Assets ?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income 3
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ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.3 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 4

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial

Statements *

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements *

HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interest in Other
Entities #

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement #

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the

definition of related parties. It also provides for
a partial exemption of related party disclosure to
government-related entities for transactions with
the same government or entities that are controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the

same government.
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2.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (continued)

2.3

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the disclosure
requirements for transfer transactions of financial
assets and allow users of financial statements to
better understand the possible effects of any risks that
may remain with the entity on transferred assets. The
amendments also require additional disclosures if a
disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are
undertaken around the end of a reporting period.

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into
financial assets measured at fair value or at amortised
cost depending on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. Fair
value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or loss
except for those non-trade equity investments, which
the entity will have a choice to recognise the gains
and losses in other comprehensive income. HKFRS
9 carries forward the recognition and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39,
except for financial liabilities that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss, where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for de-
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
and the directors so far concluded that the application
of these new/revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

These financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial assets and liabilities, which are
stated at fair values. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates and assumptions
are based on management'’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates and
assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.
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The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see note 3.3 below) made up to 30 June
each year. Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling
interest either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed.
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(continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amount of the
Group's interest is adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would
be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2

33

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interest is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is
able to exercise control. Control is achieved where
the Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that are presently
exercisable are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a jointly controlled entity. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint
control over those policies. Associates are accounted
for using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only to
the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor’s share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated against the carrying value of the associate

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount
of the associate and the entire carrying amount
of the investment is subject to impairment test, by
comparing the carrying amount with its recoverable
amount, which is higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell.



Notes to the Financial Statements m Bl 75 3R & Bt =+

For the year ended 30 June 2011

BHE_ZT——

FRA=ZTHIFE

- EEERIBREBE

34

3.5

BERNR (&)

Il

EARRBZFBRRK -
Bt R BR B 1R PR ASRUR
BERNE) IR - B
NEZFRKBEREFAER
P B, Ko & Wk IH R AN A )
N

HEZEHEE

HENEHER T —HE L
ﬁw Bt AEE K EA
AT #EITZEI HFZH 2
KOEES) - MBTELET
AP EE) G B o

RARES EREEETIE
FA R 25 0R AR IRt
HOV BB ATER - A
% HEEESERAEH
FElG 2 KRG ERFE
ENRBREDHHBELRE
B HEEEAERNEER KR
THIER R BB
SRR RIFBRTE
BREEE -

AEBEEARZEGER
MeRPMEEZRE

ﬁmﬂ&%% PAZN £ [F
R Rl 12 ) B 88« 2
R T AR - MR B

REBRHEEBEER
B2 BRI - EZBER
—I— /\EEHETF\%EEWEE

R o

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Associates (continued)

3.5

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable during the year.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control and
none of the participating parties has unilateral control
over the economic activity.

Interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted
for using equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amounts are adjusted for the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition change in the jointly controlled
entities’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group's interest in the jointly controlled entities are
not recognised unless there is an obligation to make
good those losses.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its jointly
controlled entities are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in the jointly controlled entities,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are immediately recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the reporting date,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the reporting date retranslation of monetary
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at
the closing rates at the reporting date. Income and
expenses have been converted into the HK$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, net of
rebates and discounts. Provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

(i)  from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold. This is usually taken as the time
when the goods are delivered and the customer

has accepted the goods;

(i) rental income, on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms;

(i) interest income, on a time proportion basis

using the effective interest method; and

(iv)  dividend income, when the shareholder’s right

to receive payment is established.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.8

3.9

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use. A qualifying asset is an asset which necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are
expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale are being undertaken.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
completed.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than properties
under development and construction in progress,
are stated at cost, which comprise purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use, less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses (note 3.11). Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis

to write off the cost of each asset over its

estimated

useful life. The principal annual rates used for this

purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land

Factory buildings
leases or

useful

years, W

Commercial buildings
leases or

useful

years, w

Leasehold improvements
leases or

useful lives

whicheve

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles

Over the lease terms

Over the term of the

estimated
lives of 25
hichever is

shorter

Over the term of the

estimated
lives of 33
hichever is

shorter

Over the term of the

estimated
of 4 years,
ris shorter

10%-33%

17%

25%

The depreciation method, assets’ residual values and
useful lives, are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,

at each reporting date. The gain or loss on

retirement

or disposal of an asset of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between
the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it was held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value, unless it is
still in the course of construction or development at
the reporting date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time. Fair value is determined
by external professional valuers, with sufficient
experience with respect to both the location and
the nature of the investment property. The carrying
amounts recognised in the reporting date reflect the
prevailing market conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.
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Property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indicator that
they are impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indicators that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the assets’
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of time value of money and the
risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the Group
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.
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Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata to
the other assets in the cash generating unit, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.
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3.12 #HE 3.12 Leases

WA EEE —BLH (T An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
M —IER HE— R of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
SHRK) B R R A 5 5E determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
HEAER BN EEE use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
oY % I8 & E IR EL— I8 8k time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
ZIAMNF - AZERES— Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
BHZERXH 2 LHER of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
HEE—HMEL ZEE of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
DREHZ Tz BEAT lease.

A EL - AR e & B
ERRIEAOEER

W A& 2 GRIGBRE 5 Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
FrB R & B s = terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
AEBAR ZEHEHRS and rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases
HAMEMS - A H At are classified as operating leases.

HERIDBESEEHE -

() 1EREAAZACETH ()  Operating lease charges as the lessee

EEH

AR B A REL Where the Group has the right to use the
LHERBZEEZ assets held under operating leases, payments
ER#% - BINEER made under the leases are charged to profit
AEa=R Y7 N=F =kl or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
Br o M IR E A E terms except where an alternative basis is more
HEFRRKEEEE representative of the time pattern of benefits
B HE 2 Al as 2 B PR AR to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
RSN o PIEEHE incentives received are recognised in profit or
EBRTBRETERA loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
HEF R aENHE lease payments made. Contingent rental are
BB o A SR charged to profit or loss in the accounting
HEAzetHER period in which they are incurred.

1BEER e
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(i) Land use rights

Land use rights represent up-front payments to
acquire long term interests in the usage of the
land. They are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment, if
any. The up-front payments are amortised over
the lease period on a straight-line basis and the
amortisation is charged to profit or loss.

3.13 Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are set out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

— financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

— loans and receivables
— available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.
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3.13 €REE (&) 3.13 Financial assets (continued)
FIEeREEERASR All financial assets are recognised when, and only
B ATEE KGR 2T when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
Hi& ARlER BEE provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
BEZEMEERR S HH of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
Eﬁé’ i & f B E V] 20 i When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
R BEERANFLET=E measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
3% & W FEA R FEFA not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
B BIMAEEEHGZ attributable transaction cost.

RHPAE -

W EEE ZRER Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
=2 EFE RS E rights to receive cash flows from the investments
BHBREBRIS R & expire or are transferred and substantially all of the
WM SE% - BRI risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.
mRER AR BaBERET At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
érﬂﬁ?ﬁﬂ“/)ﬂﬁ HR to assess whether there is objective evidence of
BEA%E BT HRE - fH impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
B EDREZRBREFE - B loss is determined and recognised based on the
BEEEZeREED FE classification of the financial asset.
IF_&EELW
() R FEFA BB Z () Financial assets at fair value through profit or
Ogﬂéﬁ loss
ARTEGABRZ Financial assets at fair value through profit or
SREERREHE AR loss include financial assets held for trading
EEEZEREE - and financial assets designated upon initial
LA KA )25 R nR B 35 recognition as at fair value through profit or
TEANAFER AE loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (continued)

Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling
in the near term, or it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments or financial

guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is

prohibited.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (continued)

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
if the following criteria are met:

- the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; or

= the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and
information about the group of financial
assets is provided internally on that basis
to the key management personnel; or

- the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include
non-derivative financial assets that are either
designated to this category or do not qualify
for inclusion in any of the other categories of
financial assets. All financial assets within this
category are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gain or loss arising from a change in the
fair value excluding any dividend and interest
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the
available-for-sale financial assets revaluation
reserve in equity, except for impairment losses
(see the policy below) and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets, until the
financial asset is derecognised, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in

profit or loss.
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= EEESHREBE s 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 €REE (&) 3.13 Financial assets (continued)
(i) AHRHEEZ 2B E (i) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
(#&)
FRERAMEETE Interest calculated using the effective interest
2 BRI R NEE method is recognised in profit or loss.
A S 2R = For available-for-sale investments in equity
BHEZEFEEMES W securities that do not have a quoted market
N E B T i% 2 Th % price in an active market and whose fair value
WwE - REAFER cannot be reliably measured, they are measured
BERISERTE - RIRA) at cost less any identified impairment losses
FHERE 2 BAEE at each reporting date subsequent to initial
iR AR AT E 3 recognition.
R EEEET = -
EREEZRE Impairment of financial assets
REEER - & E (A At each reporting date, financial assets other than
AFEFABEECSEE at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
ERRIN T LAZER] - DAEE determine whether there is any objective evidence
EBEETMZHRER of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment of
& HRlemEEZE individual financial assets includes observable date
BEFRBEAEETE that come to the attention of the Group about one or
B2 BB T —IAKZIE more of the followings loss events:

BREZABRRSE

- EBABEBEEAHY - significant financial difficulty of the debtors;
TR 2

-  BH - mEXRSE —  a breach of contract, such as default or
SEAREREEAR S delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- EBATEgES — it becoming probable that the debtors will enter
B E ST A M B bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
T5EMHE

- BB gE - significant changes in the technological,
SARRENEY market, economic or legal environment that
BEAENFFE have an adverse effect on the debtor; or
ZEREE)



Notes to the Financial Statements m Bl 75 3R & Bt =+

For the year ended 30 June 2011
HE-_ZT——FX A=+tHILFE

= EEESHREME s 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 €REE (&) 3.13 Financial assets (continued)
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

- significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which the impairment occurs.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which the reversal occurs.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, an amount is
removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss as impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously

recognised in profit or loss.
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3.13 €REE (&) 3.13 Financial assets (continued)

EREEREE) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i AHEEZEHEE (i) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
(&)
MEEATHLE Reversals in respect of investment in equity
ZHRATEEEZ instruments classified as available-for-sale are
BB - WAEEET not recognised in profit or loss. The subsequent

R Bigz AFE increase in fair value is recognised in other

I ANAGAE E Ath 2 E UK comprehensive income. Impairment losses
AR - HEREZ in respect of debt securities are reversed if
RNEIEINGE FELR the subsequent increase in fair value can be
EEEBREEE 2 objectively related to an event occurring after
EHEERE - AIE the impairment loss was recognised. Reversal
%EH 2 BIEEE G of impairment losses in such circumstances are
THE - LR FBR recognised in profit or loss.

T REBRZED
KB HER

(i) ARKASE ©RLE (iii)  Financial assets carried at cost
=3
BEBESETINE The amount of impairment loss is measured as
B E 2 AR (B B4 the difference between the carrying amount
PUemEE 2 fHTH of the financial asset and the present value
BIVEMIRE R T I5 of estimated future cash flows discounted at
Bl R ALIR 2 IRER the current market rate of return for a similar
ERETE - ZFRE financial asset. Such impairment losses are not
JES 1R 7 B 1% B A reversed in subsequent periods.
[ -
3.14 & 3.14 Inventories
FE Ty LA 2B 2 A & 3R Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
FEZBIEEVIR - KA net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
BENEMETFHELEE weighted average basis and, in the case of work
TE v MR m &R in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
ZRABEBRBREREEM materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
B BRESTIRZREAS of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the
Bz 2B A - 7] B5)F estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
BIYIRB T & BRI incurred to completion and disposal.
EHGTKEm RN E mE

B2 ABET AR E
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

= EEESBRBE 3.

3.15 FIfERiEs 3.15 Accounting for income taxes

P 5 5% e B B R 18 S IR 5T
TAIRRBEK,

ENERSEER %8
BEEREARRAEREH
ERHRBERBATEZ
REHKERBERRR
(ERBEEBRRARZA)
DREBEFANRRBRA -
2B YRR 2 @R
REBUETE - MEBHIA
BEXRBZEHIES
Bt HIRRS 2 — 87 -

BELERBADRNEERE
ERBERTHHRE 28R
HERESEAZHECE
RERABBEFTE - B
EHBRE—REAEE
RMEREZEMER - WA
REA R BN 2 FERR Bt
MBREABERER) A
HAFRERE5E - R
RZHBEBREIRBAZ
HEERBA - ABLAE
AHRERERE A
ZHBEEEREMAREA
Z BRI % MR IR
BE -

R BRI PR (RHE
HEINRBPZEERA
BEEZERMEZRYE
AV E BB E
AT RERELENRAEER
AfE-

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits, including existing
temporary difference, will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items
that are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@)  the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.15 Fi8HiEst (&) 3.15 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

(b) FEEFIHEEEELT (b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
HIEE EEENE— liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
TS HERARE LA T (E (A same taxation authority on either:

— BB T

it :

i)y RA—FEREHE (i) the same taxable entity; or
B 3k

(i) EFFEMBEXR (i)  different taxable entities which intend
SR EAR (T 78 23 either to settle current tax liabilities
FEBAHERA and assets on a net basis, or to realise
15 )& 18 =k 4 = the assets and settle the liabilities
N BRI ER simultaneously, in each future period in
HEBEXEE) which significant amounts of deferred
DAE 8E B A4 tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
HERNATIE B settled or recovered.
& £2 & EE ok A
REREER
BEABENT
[FIFERTTE RS ©

3.16 HERFALER 3.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Re PR SRORERITR Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and

ﬁ&?ﬁﬁifﬁdﬁ CIRITRAT in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term

K ARFEHM BRER 2 highly liquid investments with original maturities of

A MRS R AL ; o
B M SRAwREA three months or less that are readily convertible into

known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

BRI NS RS - AR

B A B = B HREE IR — AR insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose
B=EA - mEeREES of statement of cash flows presentation, cash and
B= - BeRBELZHES cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which are
FEAPNR A B R AN E repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
BIRSEBEFELS ZRT Group's cash management.

BX o
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17

3.18

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received
on the issue of share capital. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuing of shares are deducted
from share premium (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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3.18 EERAI (&) 3.18 Employee benefits (continued)
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Pension scheme (continued)

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the
Group operated a defined contribution retirement
benefits scheme (the “Prior Scheme”) for those
employees who were eligible to participate in this
scheme. The Prior Scheme operated in a similar way to
the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee left
the Prior Scheme before his/her interest in the Group's
employer contributions vested fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group were reduced
by the relevant amount of the forfeited employer’s
contributions.

The employees of the subsidiaries which operate in
the People’s Republic of China except Hong Kong and
Macau (“Mainland China”) are required to participate
in a retirement benefits scheme (the “RB Scheme”)
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the RB Scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the RB Scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the RB Scheme.
Contributions under the RB Scheme are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the RB Scheme.



Notes to the Financial Statements m Bl 73R & Bt =+

For the year ended 30 June 2011
HE-ZT——F A=1THILFE

= EEESTBRBE )

3.18

3.19

EERF (&)

FEHES 7EF

B 8 FREFNES TR’
SR - WrlESNE
EREE BRI RERSMmE
EZERZEFREER
B

FRAMBRN I T
R o

LARR 7 7 B4 2 $REN

rEEREREEREME
BER2EEZMERE N
PR A A5 E 2 DARRAD ST %7
BiETE) -

A AT A B 10 ST AN 3
B & 1S 2 A B 8 RS
BIRE RN FERE - B
FIRERAT A 2 EEM
B8 MEEIRES
BHEIRES - RINBREMIZE
™5 5 B Rt 2 & 8 (P
e BN RHERE
BiR)

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18

3.19

Employee benefits (continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees and other eligible participants.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at their fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the equity instruments awarded. Their
value is appraised at the grant date and excludes the
impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).
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3.19 LR BER 2 IREN (&) 3.19 Share-based compensation (continued)
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All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as asset, with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve
in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the expense
is recognised over the vesting period, based on the
best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

For warrants granted to service providers in exchange
for services acquired, they are measured at the fair
value of the services received. If the fair value of
the services received cannot be measured reliably,
it will be measured by using valuation technique.
Their fair values of the services are recognised as
expense immediately, unless the services qualify for
recognition as assets. Corresponding adjustments
have been made to equity.

At the time when the share options or warrants are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in reserve
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting
date, when the vested share options and warrants are
later forfeited or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve/warrant reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank loans,
accruals, trade and other payables, derivative financial
instruments, amounts due to associates, amount due
to ultimate holding company, amount due to a jointly
controlled entity, convertible note, promissory note
and loans from non-controlling interests.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for
borrowing costs (see note 3.8).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in profit or loss.

(@)  Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

(@)  Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12

months after the reporting date.

(b)  Convertible notes contain liability and equity
components, and early redemption options

derivative

Convertible notes issued by the Group that
contain liability, conversion option and early
redemption option (which is not closely related
to the host contract) are classified separately
into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash for a fixed
number of the Group’s own equity instruments
is classified as an equity instrument. At date
of issue, the fair value of a similar liability with
similar early redemption option is determined
("the combined instrument”). The difference
between the fair value of the convertible notes
and the fair value of the combined instrument
representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the notes into equity is
included in convertible note equity reserve.
The initial carrying amount of the liability
component is determined after deducting the
fair value of the early redemption option from
the fair value of the combined instrument.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

(b)  Convertible notes contain liability and equity
components, and early redemption options

derivative (continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component
of the convertible notes is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
early redemption option is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in

profit or loss.

The equity component, representing the
option to convert the liability component into
ordinary shares of the Group, will remain in
the convertible note equity reserve until the
embedded conversion option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in the convertible
note equity reserve will be transferred to
share premium). Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible note equity reserve
will be released to the retained profits. No gain
or loss is recognised in the profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion

option.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Financial liabilities (continued)

(b)  Convertible notes contain liability and equity
components, and early redemption options

derivative (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible notes are allocated to the
liability, equity and early redemption option
components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the early
redemption option are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised
over the period of the convertible notes using

the effective interest method.

(c)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21

3.22

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts
or separated from hybrid financial instruments,
are initially recognised at fair value on the date the
derivative contract is entered into and subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives that are not
designated as hedging instruments are accounted for
as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value are taken directly to profit or loss
for the year.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.22

3.23

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the course
of the allocation of purchase price to the assets
and liabilities acquired in a business combination.
They are initially measured at fair value at the date
of acquisition and subsequently measured at the
higher of the amount that would be recognised in
a comparable provision as described above and the
amount initially recognised less any accumulated
amortisation, if appropriate.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

a1
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23

3.24

3.25

Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the current
carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as revenue in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the capital and reserves section of the statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.25

3.26

Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the
executive directors for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components
and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive
directors are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

Design, manufacturing, marketing and trading
of fine jewellery and diamonds

Property investment

Investment

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers, if any, are
carried out at arms length prices.

~
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The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those use in its financial statements prepared
under HKFRSs, except that expenses related to share-
based payments, share of results of associates and
jointly controlled entities accounted for using the
equity method, finance costs, income tax expenses
and corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment, are not included in arriving at the
operating results of the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, interests in associates
and interests in jointly controlled entities. In addition,
corporate assets, which are not directly attributable to
the business activities of any operating segment are
not allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to
the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude bank loans, due to ultimate
holding company, provision for tax, deferred tax
liabilities and corporate liabilities which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment and primarily applies to the
Group's headquarter.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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(i)

(iii)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediate, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or any entity that is related party of the
Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealing with the
entity.

O
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AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimation of impairment losses of available-for-sale
financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost is considered to
be objective evidence of impairment. Judgement is required
when determining whether a decline in fair value has been
significant and/or prolonged. In making this judgement, the
historical data on market volatility as well as the price of the
specific investment are taken into account. The Group also
takes into account other factors, such as industry and sector
performance and financial information regarding the issuer/
investee.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimated fair value of investment property

Investment property of the Group is stated at fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 3.10.
The fair value of investment property, set out in note 17 to
the financial statements, is determined by an independent
professional valuer, Chung, Chan & Associates (“CCA").
Such valuation is made based on certain assumptions, which
are subject to uncertainties and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making the judgement, reasonable
consideration has been given to the underlying assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
reporting date. These estimates are regularly compared to
actual market data and actual transactions in the market.

Provision for impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness, the
collateral security and the past collection history of each
client. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group,
on whose account provision for impairment has been made,
were improved and no impairment of their ability to make
payments were noted, reversal of provision for impairment
may be required.
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AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare the
carrying value of inventories to their respective net realisable
value. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in determining such allowance. If conditions which have
impact on the net realisable value of inventories deteriorate,
additional allowances may be required.

Valuation of convertible note

The directors use their judgement in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for the Group’s convertible
note which is not quoted in an active market. Valuation
technigues commonly used by market practitioners are
applied. The fair value of convertible note is estimated
by independent professional valuer based on actual
transactions of the financial instruments in the market or
transactions of similar financial instruments which generally
represent the best estimate of the market value. The fair
value of convertible note varies with different variables
of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in these
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of
the fair value of convertible note.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxation. Where the final tax
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.



Annual Report 2011 5§

Notes to the Financial Statements m 51 7% 3R &5 [i:E

For the year ended 30 June 2011
HE-_ZT——F A=1tHILFE

g

B 82 & =t fh 5t & FIER

(%)

SR EHRREENQFE
fh&t

ERERIRER Z N FENAZIA
ABEEERAFE - WEREAR
SEEEEHTEERAEHIX
ERAEH  PIIE R L RIE
& TR FH (RIRTTRER H K2
IRZERAER)  REKRE -
RSP 19 I (B N SRR RE AV TT (2
B - ZFRAEMNBEERHA
FEMATEREATE

SERE R

TERBRREREAIATL
WTES - ARAZITESE
HARE=ARBRIEHLE
P -

EEDHBERBREARNRNTES
EEHZHEETE  ZFHEH
RIHERBARDBEEIR

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimate of fair value of unlisted warrants granted

The fair value of warrants granted was calculated using
the Binomial Option Pricing Model based on the Group
management’s significant inputs into the pricing model
such as the expected life of warrants granted, based on
exercise restrictions and behavioural consideration, the
volatility of share price, weighted average share prices, and
exercise price of the warrants granted. Changes in these
inputs may materially affect the fair value estimates.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Company’s executive directors. The executive directors
of the Company have identified the Group’s three services
lines as operating segments.

The operating segments were determined based on the
reports reviewed by the Company’s executive directors that
are used to assess performance and allocate resources.

w
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Rif - #E  HRREE
HEEHRER
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of NERE RE& &a
fine jewellery and diamonds  Property investment Investment Consolidated
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

FAT FET FAT AT A1 FEr FA7 AT
HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
HHA - Segment revente:
EETHREE/  Salestofrevenue from
WEBMRER external parties 969,835  1,018293 - 10,522 3,666 2,893 973501 1,031,708
A% Segment results 29,509 12,366 12,750 14,390 (2,985) 2,326 39,274 29,082
PARAAER M Share-based compensation - (53,008
AARFR Unallocated expenses (6,126)  (15,215)
BENA Finance costs (2,346) 2.31)
FEIEHENFFEE  Share of results of associates (174) (260)
iR Share of results of jointly
Bzl controlled entities 5,359 52,821
BEETRIE R Profit before income tax 35,387 11,189
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B SERRER#) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Fit - #E  BEREE
HEEHRER
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of NERE R &8
fine jewellery and diamonds  Property investment Investment Consolidated

2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
fér  TEr Tt TEr  TEx  TEr  TEr 7L
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS00  HKS'000

(E51)
(restated)
PHEE Segment assets 449,995 461,930 446,599 410,122 153,110 40438 1,049,704 912,490
REEDNFIZES  Interestsin associates 2333 2821
REREGESE  Interestsin ointly
LI controlled entities 47326 320466
ReLssE Cash and cash equivalents 49867 153,940
BILHIEEE Deferred tax assets 9,326 9217
AORATEE Unallocated corporate assets 178 177
BEEE Total assets 15873 1399111
HHEE Seqment libilites 179347 186,636 5159 6,088 51,198 365 235704 193,089
FIET-EEA  Bank loans, secured 35139 178994
TR ER Due to ulfimate holding
AR company 7877 7877
Wk Provision for tax 16,367 10,180
ELEEE Deferred tax liahilities 16 16
APEAAEE  Unallocated corporate liabilties 493 1,439
afEgE Total liabilities 495596 391505
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B ERVER ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Fit B EEREE
KERHRER
Design, manufacturing,
marketing and trading of NERE k&
fine jewellery and diamonds  Property investment Investment Consolidated
2011 2010 2011 2010 201 2010 201 2010
FAT FET FAT AT FAT AT FA7 AT
HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
(E51) (E51)
(restated) (restated)
HthAEEH : Other segment information:
W% BERFE  Depreciation of property,
i plant and equipment (6,308 (6,305) (37) (37 - - (6845 (684
TR Amortisation of land use rights ~~ (107) (78) - = = = (107) (78)
=T Bad debts recovery - 1,469 - = = = = 1469
REWEZATE  Changein fairvalue of
23 investment property - - 12,791 6,008 - - 12,791 6,608
ESRIEY Fair value gain/(loss) on
NHERE/ derivative financial
(Ei8) instruments 624 (43) - - = = 624 (43)
DAAFEFABE  Fair value gain on finanal
LEREE assets at fai value through
LATERE profit or oss - - - - 2316 1182 2316 1,182
HELHERE  Gainondisposal of
G land use rights - 616 - - - - - 616
HENE - BREREE (Loss)/Gain on disposal of
Z(BB)/ & property, plant and equipment  (124) 680 - (203) - = (124) a7
WERRIAE SR Loss on erivative contracts for
BEMIETE  acouisition of available-for-sale
AHEE finandial assets - - - - (1,049) - (1,049) -
RTEHESHEE  Redassification from equity to
WEGHESER  profitorloss on impaiment
PEEER of available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - (7,864) - (7,864) -
BEENGUERE  Provision for trade receivables  (768) 17 - (840) - - (768) (668)
FERE Provision against inventories ~ (1,599) - - = - = (1,599) =
U Interest income - - - - 98 UE 988 lUE
REERGHWEE  Additions to non-current
segment assets 7,198 9,072 18,601 1672 - - 26,399 16,744
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B ERVER ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
AEBREINAEE ZWMARE The Group’s segment revenue from external customers
FRBDEE(ER T ERIELH and its non-current assets (other than financial instruments
BEERIN BID RAT I - and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following

geographical areas.

REMREZEZWA
Revenue from
external customers

2011 2010
FET FH#ET
HK$°000 HK$'000
B (EBEFTTEH) Hong Kong (domicile) 162,897 140,533
E3EM North America 489,105 528,551
M Europe 312,121 346,450
H b= Other locations 9,378 16,174
A&t Total 973,501 1,031,708
FRBEE
Non-current assets
2011 2010
FET TrE7T
HK$°000 HK$'000
B (EEEFT/EHD) Hong Kong (domicile) 455,861 416,474
BOM Europe 6,179 5,556
T E A Mainland China 460,096 364,514
H b= Other locations 134 3
il Total 922,270 786,547
B2 BB EBBER MR The geographical location of customers is based on the
BRI m B mE D o IF location at which the services were provided or the goods
mEEE (e TAREERIE delivered. The geographical location of the non-current
BEBRIN 2HIBNERRIEE assets (other than financial instruments and deferred tax
EERFEmEl s o assets) is based on the physical location of the asset.
HITESEECASE 8T The executive directors determine the Group is domiciled in
REB ERAEBEAEINE Hong Kong, which is the location of the Group'’s principal

i o office.
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Weas (BIASR B2 25588 S840
BREREMESTINREEHER
ZEBREFE  HeBAER A
BUWARIZE ZBBIA °

AEBKEZ DT

REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
returns and trade discounts, gross rental income, interest
income, and dividend income from investments.

An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows:

2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEEm Sale of goods 969,835 1,018,293
HEWAERE Gross rental income = 10,522
FEWA Interest income 988 773
"EZREWA Dividend income from investments 2,678 2,120
973,501 1,031,708
AL B A A 7. FINANCE COSTS
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERX : Interest charges on:
RITER Bank loans
—ERNAFREHEE  — wholly repayable within five years 6,480 6,550
AR 2 BRI S Imputed interest expenses on
A (fEFE=1+=) convertible note (note 32) 974 =
ERAFANBEEE Promissory note wholly repayable
2 R within five years - 12
BIEERR Total borrowing costs 7,454 6,562
B B YEE AN Z8R1T Less: Bank loan interest capitalised in
BA 8 (fsE++) investment property (note 17) (5,108) (4,331)
2,346 2,231

BN MBRBITERZBERK
N BIEREBEERETE T
rEEER BB SIREREER
RZTEHER - REE=ZT——
FERAZTBHBLEFE 25K
EREREGRZBITERF E
456,480,000 8L (ZF—F4F :
6,550,000 7T ) °

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank loans,
including term loans which contain a repayment on demand
clause in accordance with the agreed scheduled repayments
dates set out in the loan agreements. For the year ended
30 June 2011, the interest on bank loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause amounted to HK$6,480,000
(2010: HK$6,550,000).
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J\ > BRERSHANEF 8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
2011 2010
FE FET
HK$'000 HK$°000
(&71)
(restated)
REBRFTEFHATGFAH  The Group's profit before income tax

B/ (GTA)ATIEEEZER :  isarrived at after charging/(crediting):

BEELFEERA Cost of inventories sold 858,338 924,552
REZEYE RS WALEE  Gross rental income from investment property = (10,522)
BRREME 2 HZ Outgoings in respect of investment property - 982
REZEMEZASWAFE  Net rental income from investment property = (9,540)
M - BB RRETE Depreciation of property,

(fF=E+H) plant and equipment (note 15) 6,845 6,842
T PR 5 Amortisation of land use rights (note 16)

(B3E+77) 107 78
REGCEHEE L RET Minimum lease payments under operating

ZEREREMH leases on land and buildings 5,847 5,321
ZE A B Auditor’s remuneration 922 1,042
EERME Bad debts recovery - (1,469)
FERE~ Provision for inventories* 1,599 =
ARREIREREEE Fair value loss on redemption option of

REEEE(FE=1+2) convertible note (note 32) 259 =
TESRIARNTE Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative

(Wa) /B8 financial instruments

—RHEBAY —forward currency contracts (624) 443
JHIE HE1E Net foreign exchange losses 388 3,006
& L AR Gain on disposal of land use rights - (616)
HEME - BE RZHE Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property,

2518,/ (k) plant and equipment 124 477)
BUSRB) Government grants (330) =
B Z M IER Provision for trade receivables 768 668
RAHE S EERE Reclassification from equity to profit or

KEERETHE loss on impairment of available-for-sale

2% (fsFE=1+— (b)) financial assets (note 21(b)) 7,864 =
[ EENEIE S =iy Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries (note 40.2)

Wz (Bif5E40.2) (4,609) -
WA HHESHEER Loss on derivative contracts for acquisition of

PTETEEXEE available-for-sale financial assets (note 32)

(fE=+=) 1,049 -
FFEFIRERER Write back of loans from non-controlling

Bh (MaE=1) interests (note 30) (1,125) =
* FRAZGEERBFAGESR @ Provision for inventories for the year was included in “cost

EEmR 2 [HEKA] A - of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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L BEHEX 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
BEBNEHIIARFERES Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
EE A Z AT FE SR B m A i i = 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
16.5% (ZZ—Z4F : 16.5%)&f arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits
H o H b [R ERT R 2 B8 assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable
AR B 28 2 (E R R A R IR rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
Bz TR E - WIRIEZS operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
AR 2 IBITAN - RRENIE practices in respect thereof.

BIfEL -

2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
(&%)
(restated)

BNEATIE Current tax
BB Hong Kong 4,962 6,495
LAFEET R Under-provision in prior years 793 99
5,755 6,594

FEEFEIE (fiFE=+=) Deferred tax (note 33)
KEE Current year (109) =

FriSHiF Xz Total income tax expense 5,646 6,594
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j'[, JIigE *ﬁﬁﬁ Z ) 0. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
ST 58 2 N2 7 e A3 i FA Recondiliation between income tax expense and accounting
+qu )R profit at applicable tax rates:
2011 2010
FAET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(restated)
BRFTE AR Profit before income tax 35,387 11,189
BT SF AT E AR IEIEE  Tax on profit before income tax,
HE16.5% (ZF—FTF : calculated at the statutory rate of
16.5%) 5T & 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) 5,839 1,846
ﬁé\ﬁ?ﬂﬂ?f%ﬁ“%zm Effect of different tax rates of
BRAATEREz 2 subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions (113) (1,108)
JEMREE S N RIEB BB E  Tax effect of share of results of associates 128 43
FE(R RS BB AE Tax effect of share of results of
2GR E jointly controlled entities (884) (8,715)
PAMB X H 2 R 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 4,596 14,895
IR 2 % 5 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (4,210) (2,834)
SEEBRANTEERS Tax effect of prior years' tax losses
EiEZ G2 utilised this year (1,201) (606)
HBRERER L Tax effect of temporary differences
by %2 recognised this year (109) =
RERHBEBZRIEFE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 807 2,974
LA B R HHE Under-provision in prior years 793 99
AEEHBEAS Tax charge for the year 5,646 6,594
T AARBEAEANEMNE 10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
F OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
ARREE ANE TE R B A Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of
33,453,000 (=T —ZF : the Company of HK$33,453,000 (2010: HK$4,812,000
4,812,0003% 7t ( E&WJ )) FeR (restated)), HK$5,388,000 (2010: HK$61,276,000) has
N RS B R IR 2 i A been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

5,388,000 8L (& —ZF4F :
61,276,000 7T) ©
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(@) AFERMNARFEEA

11. DIVIDENDS

(a)

Dividends payable to the owners of the Company

RE : attributable to the year:
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000

RHl— SRR E@A%0.001 /87 Interim - HK$0.001 (2010: HK$0.001)
—Z—F4F :0.001%57T) per ordinary share 3,128 3,128

BURAH — SRR EBMIZE T Proposed final — Nil (2010: HK$0.001)
(ZZ2—Z4% : 0.001%7L) per ordinary share = 3,128
3,128 6,256

ESTEBRNEE=ZT
——&XA=Z+HLFE
ZARBBRE(ZE—TF :
FREEAZ0.00187T) °

(b) AFEEHEREXMNZ
- BFEERMNARRAF]

(b)

The directors do not recommand the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2011 (2010:
HK$0.001 per ordinary share).

Dividends payable to the owners of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved

BEARE. : and paid during the year:
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
ANEFEHERE M2 L Final dividend in respect of the previous
—BTBFE 2 REAR S financial year, approved and
BigE#E0.001 7T paid during the year, of HK$0.001
—TFF 8K (2010: HK$0.001
@AY 0.00187T) per ordinary share) 3,128 3,128
AEFEMERESFZ £ Special dividend in respect of the previous
—IIEFE 2R RIRE financial year, approved and
BikE@EKREET paid during the year — Nil
(Z2—2F : 8K (2010: HK$0.030
T3EA%0.030757T) per ordinary share) = 93,849
3,128 96,977
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ARBREENELHEBRERTE
BRI NI BIEAE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company are based on the

following data:

2011 2010
FiET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
(&F71))
(restated)
RATHEE AR Profit attributable to the owners of

the Company 33,453 4,812
2011 2010

BHEE

Ut ESRELRAFZ
BB 2R

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for
the purpose of basic earnings

Number of shares

per share 3,128,303,340 3,128,303,340
EETMRBREE LR Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
B ST R ZE shares in respect of
(BH=E () the unlisted warrants (note (i)) 39,333,977 66,272,612
Nt ESREERH 2 Weighted average number of
AR N a2 ordinary shares for the purpose
of diluted earnings per share 3,167,637,317 3,194,575,952

w
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(ii)

HE_T——FR_ZT—F
ANA=ZTHLEFENEESR
BHOFTERA -

FLTRREEOZEREN
—EREE

AR R AT R RS
A% 2 T &9 < %8 18 A0 AT R AR
ZRUHEFESRELRARANE
REEER WRHRTE#EE
TR A 2B Bt
BEEREBANESEIHER
BHE_ZT——F~A=Z1+H
FtEEHARBHEB ARMN
Y 733,453,000 7t A K& B
BT ERBRMETFHEA
3,167,637,317 & °

BE_Z-ZTFXA=1+HL
FE - MERTURRERE
B EEEETRAN ZFHE
BREEAIRE

Tl F X (&

g 18
EME M=

=
ut

12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

The effect of the unlisted warrants was included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 30
June 2011 and 2010.

Because the diluted earnings per share amount is increased when
taking convertible note into account, the convertible note had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share for the
year and were ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings per
share. Therefore, diluted earnings per share amounts are based
on the profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$33,453,000 and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 3,167,637,317 in issue during the year ended 30 June
2011.

During the year ended 30 June 2010, convertible note was not
issued and therefore, there was no impact on the calculation of
the diluted earnings per share.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(including directors’ emoluments -

+m) note 14)
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

I8 #He 2R Wages, salaries, allowances and
EWA= benefits in kind 64,908 62,224
BRIREKA — 38T FRETE] Pension costs — defined contribution plans 5,665 4,367
B BRIz R Less: Forfeited contributions = (14)
70,573 66,577
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+M - EEMERSHEIER 14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

A B Z Fr i AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

EMOLUMENTS

KB ETRBIR BB R RIEREIZE Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the Listing

—ANTIFEEZESMS T Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
N Ordinance is as follows:

2011 2010

FET T

HK$’000 HK$°000

e Fees 396 264

e R REYA =S Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 5,807 5,173

TEAT Bonus 461 1,163

IRIRETEI AR Retirement scheme contributions 249 225

6,913 6,825

B EXFTHEEEESN - RMEEE Save as disclosed above, none of the executive, non-

ABERNITES « IENITESRDL executive or independent non-executive directors received

B IEITE S WA E RS any fees or other reimbursements or emoluments for both

HibmESME - years.
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T EEMERSREE 14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
ABZFH M 2 AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

() Bz ZT——&FK_FT— (@) The emoluments of each director, on a named basis,
TEANA=ZTHIEEFE for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010 are set
BREREENETESR Y out below:

BeEHIT
2011
4 28 N
REWHE A
Salaries, Retirement
#% allowances and i scheme st
Fees benefits in kind Bonus  contributions Total
FiET FET FEx FiEr FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
HTES: Executive directors:
REZE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,468 288 155 3911
i3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley - 911 74 40 1,025
REH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 504 36 2 562
BREY Chan Wai Lap, Victor = 924 63 32 1,019

FHTES . Non-executive directors:
BRT Cao Kuangyu 100 - - - 100
ABI(HEEG)  Fang Gang (note (i) 96 = - - 9%

BAUFETES . Independent non-executive directors:

RER Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - - - 50
PR I Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - - - 50
it Sze Irons 50 - - - 50
RiIE Cheung Chi Fai, Frank 50 - - - 50
“Z——F45  Total 2011 396 5,807 461 249 6,913
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+M - EEMERSREE 14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
ANBZ 3l ) AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

() Bz ZT——FKR_FT— (@) The emoluments of each director, on a named basis,
TEAAZ=ZTHILEEFEE for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010 are set
R BN H R EE S out below (continued):

Me#HsanT : (&)
2010
e 28 BIK
REWHE TRl
Salaries, Retirement
#%  allowances and A scheme et
Fees  benefits in kind Bonus  contributions Total
AT FAT FET FAT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HIES: Executive directors:
REZE Chan Sing Chuk, Charles - 3,434 300 147 3,881
i3 Cheng Siu Yin, Shirley = 875 140 39 1,054
REH Chan Wai Kei, Vicki - 419 60 19 498
4 Chan Wai Lap, Victor - 445 413 20 878
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
REE(PIFEG))  Chu Wai Kok (note (ii) 38 - 50 - 88
ZERF (Bi=EGi)  Cao Kuangyu (note (ii) 25 - = - 25
BAUFETES . Independent non-executive directors:
&8 (fits ()  Wong Kai Cheong (note (i) 38 - 50 - 88
REX Yu Shiu Tin, Paul 50 - 50 - 100
R Chan Ping Kuen, Derek 50 - 50 - 100
il Sze Irons 50 = 50 - 100
R (HizE(v)  Cheung ChiFai, Frank (note (i) 13 - - - 13
“T-TFEG Total 2010 264 5,173 1,163 25 6,825
FAREESEHEXRE There was no arrangement under which a director waived
WEE RS 2 L5k - or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years.
FR AEEBTERES During the years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
AT E AT B <& VE & I A 3% the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
RAINAZ & B 6y 2 2R 5k Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

RERLARIE -
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(b)

HE-_ZT——FR=_Z—
TENAZTBHLEEE
RAREENLEESRY
BT : (48)

Bt -

iy FARAR=Z=—ZF+tA
THREZRESART
FEHITES -

iy KREBERFESKR_-F
—ZTF=RA=1+HB55
BFEARRERITES
KB IFTES -

i) WRIR-F—TFM
AEERELARAT
EHTEE -

vy REER-_Z-ZFMN
HEBEZEASAEARE
B IFRITES -

EfURSHAL

FRAMN ST ATEE
—H(ZE—FF: =F)
B HeFBERE
N B TRA(ZE—F
FWMB)UFEEZ2ES

14. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

The emoluments of each director, on a named basis,
for the years ended 30 June 2011 and 2010 are set
out below (continued):

Notes:

(i) Fang Gang was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 15 July 2010.

(i) Chu Wai Kok resigned as a non-executive director of
the Company and Wong Kai Cheong resigned as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on
30 March 2010.

(iii) Cao Kuangyu was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 7 April 2010.

(iv)  Cheung Chi Fai, Frank was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 7 April 2010.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals during the year
included three (2010: three) directors, details of
whose emoluments are set out above. Details of the
emoluments of the remaining two (2010: two) non-
directors, highest paid individuals are as follows:

FALT S BT ¢
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
4 EEEREWRE  Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,718 2,371
RIRGHEIHEFR Retirement scheme contributions 12 12
TE4T Bonus 818 80
3,548 2,463
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HE-Z——F A=Z+tALFE
+M - EEMERSREIER 14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
IN-P4 116 AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) HNNBESFAL(E) (b) Five highest paid individuals (continued)
FEE 2 &= AT The number of non-directors, highest paid individuals

SZEBEN T THE&HEZ
ABINR

whose emoluments fell within the following bands is
as follows:

ABEE
Number of individuals

2011 2010
1,000,001 & TLE HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000

1,500,000 7T - 2
1,500,001 87L& HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

2,000,000 77T 2 —

2 2

FR- AEEALERMRH
&= AT AHEAB 2
ERMAERIMAREE
Ry 2 S B S BER AR (B -

During the years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the two highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

O
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(=)

+F - YE - BB RR 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
rEH Group

B %E-
BTREE #ERAE
i e HE  Fumiture,
€L Buildings and i F#E  fixtures and

Leasehold |easehold Properties under Plantand  equipment and %

and  improvements  development machinery  motor vehicles Total

Tt T 7T T T T

HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HK$000

(restated) (restated]

E2]) (7))

R-FRNELR-A(BE)

At 1 July 2009 (as restated)

i Cost 6,160 %9 391,389 59,286 18157 577,984
EERGE Accumulated deprecation andimpaiment ~ (2477) (£0.931) = (50,764) (14,9) (138465)
EATE Net carying amount 3,683 32,061 391,389 852 3864 139519
BE E-ZENACTALEE Year ended 30 June 2010

2 Opening net canying amount 3683 32,061 391,389 851 3,864 139519
e Additions - 1071 - 646 1,355 9072
ERERENZ (L) Transfr tonvestment property (note 17) - - (391,3%9) = = (391,389)
e Disposals - (%7) - - (383) (1,350
& Depreciaion (136) B3621) - (1,226) (1,859) (6,842
EfE Bxchange reaignment - 391 - (555) 494 EL
EXREFE (losing net carrying amount 3541 34,935 - 7381 340 49340
H=B-2£/7A=1H At30 June 2010

A Cost 6,160 794600 - 59538 13908 194,206
EERGE Accumulated deprecation andimpaiment ~ (2613) (64665) = (52,151) (t5.431) (144.866)
RORE Net carrying amount 3547 3493 - 7381 340 49340
BEE-EnACTALEE Year ended 30 June 2011

EEETE Opening net canying amount 3547 34935 = 7387 3471 19340
WE-FHERA (i 401) Acquition of asubsidary (note 40.1 - - - - 6 66
e Addtions - 1,182 - 156 6,460 1798
{hE Disposals - Ul - (67) (50) (124)
& Depreciaion (101) (3,110) - (946) (2,688) (6,843
Ef Bxchange reaignment - 1753 - 308 1 2083
EXREFE (losing net carrying amount 3,446 34753 - 6,838 7.61 5,9
H=E--§rA=1R At30 June 2011

i Cost 6,160 8,183 - 60,582 55,054 24979
ETERGE Accumulated deprecation andimpaiment ~ (714) (¢8,430) = (53,744) (77%) (152681)
RORE Net carrying amount 3,446 34753 - 6,838 7,261 5,98
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+H - YE BB R 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(%) (continued)
REB (&) Group (continued)

R=ZZT—F~A=+H &&
= AR ) F{E 4B XY 20,613,000 75
T(RZZE—ZFTF~A=1+H:
20,977,000 7T (E5) RIR=ZZ
TN+ H—H:414,430,00075
o (&%) 2B THE LT KiE
FHRBHAUAERR T ASE 2 —
MERITEE (MisE=+) -

R-ZE—FA=1+H £5
R BERERERNZAEER
BRI HE /4 3,499,00078 T (R =
T—FTFXA=-+H 3,640,000
BT (8) MR =EENF LA
—H : 3,910,000 7T (E%1))) 2
FAE T RAEFARE AL AR
HHEEREE -

At 30 June 2011, the Group’s certain leasehold land
and buildings with aggregate net carrying amounts
of approximately HK$20,613,000 (at 30 June 2010:
HK$20,977,000 (restated) and at 1 July 2009:
HK$414,430,000 (restated)) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).

At 30 June 2011, the Group's leasehold land and buildings,
included in property, plant and equipment, with a net
carrying amount of HK$3,499,000 (at 30 June 2010:
HK$3,640,000 (restated) and at 1 July 2009: HK$3,910,000
(restated)) are situated in Hong Kong and are held under a
medium term lease.
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~

T3 LMERAE

16. LAND USE RIGHTS

rEE

Group
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
(&%)
(restated)
FHRREFE Opening net carrying amount 3,920 5,200
FREHE R Amortisation charge for the year (107) (78)
= Disposal = (1,202)
FEREEFE Closing net carrying amount 3,813 3,920

AEER L REZ R RTA
NREEMEEFE - EREFED

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid
operating lease payments and their net carrying amounts

HIRUNNE are analysed as follows:
rEE
Group
2011 2010
FET TFHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
(E51)
(restated)
REBUAINEE : Outside Hong Kong, held on:
A+ A _E R ERFA EP Long term lease of over 50 years 236 242
TEER S HHEE Medium term lease of between 10 to 50 years 3,577 3,678
3,813 3,920

RZZE——FA=+H"' &
SEIRM{EAREEX71,919,000/8
T(RZZE—ZFTFA=+H:
1,882,000 L (&) k=T —
THE+ F—H : 2,845,000 T
(E5)) 2 & T L5 F s 4
AR T AREE 2 —#%R1T
=5 (MfiE=t+1) -

At 30 June 2011, the Group's certain land use rights with
aggregate carrying amounts of HK$1,919,000 (at 30
June 2010: HK$1,882,000 (restated) and at 1 July 2010:
HK$2,845,000 (restated)) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 29).
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+t B EWE 17.

AEENGEHETAFHE - A
REES N EAILER AR
SEFRBIERREERZ A
YEiED - BERAATFEERERR
REMEBFERAR

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals, for capital appreciation purposes or
property that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property are measured using the fair value
model and are classified and accounted for as investment

property.

5N B OR & 2 SR (A

Movements of the carrying amounts presented in the

htaan T consolidated statement of financial position can be
summarised as follows:

REE

Group
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RENZ REE Carrying amount at beginning of the year 410,000 -

BREVE  BE Transfer from property, plant and equipment

PEGIGESED) (note 15) - 391,389
NE Additions 18,601 7,672
BRI ZRTEZFE (izE+)  Bank loan interest capitalised (note 7) 5,108 4,331
ATEARES O FHE Net gain from fair value adjustments 12,791 6,608
RERZEREE Carrying amount at end of the year 446,500 410,000

RZFE——FA=+A8 " & As at 30 June 2011, included in investment property

AEEMEZELRLENE B
14,175,000 L ( — T —ZF 4 :
9,067,00077T) °

R-ZFB——FRA=1TH &
B2 REBYMERLRNER - WAK
HHEERS -

was interest capitalised of HK$14,175,000 (2010:
HK$9,067,000).

As at 30 June 2011, the Group's investment property is
situated in Hong Kong and is held under long term lease.

w



Notes to the Financial Statements m Bl 75 3R & Bt =+

For the year ended 30 June 2011
HE-Z——FX A=+tHILFE

~

+t - BEWE ) 17.

R-ZZT—FA=1+H" K&
B 2BV A B ST ERD
BETERARMSEIREREE
£ 2ERUYMEZTEENG
& /446,500,000 T (=& —
= £ : 410,000,000 7T ) °
BEFFEMELEZATFERAE
12,791,000 (=& —ZF :
6,608,000 7T ) # A F E 218

Ny
S o
panN

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

At 30 June 2011, the Group’s investment property was
revalued by CCA, an independent firm of chartered
surveyors, at HK$446,500,000 (2010: HK$410,000,000) on
an open market existing use basis by reference to market
prices for similar properties. A fair value gain on revaluation
of HK$12,791,000 (2010: HK$6,608,000) arising therefrom
was credited to profit or loss for the year.

kY P 3 -
T\ -RMB AR ZERE 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
P N/N |
Company

2011 2010
FETT FETT
HK$000 HK$'000
FEETREAD - A Unlisted shares, at cost 122,076 124,849
HEHE Deemed capital contribution 173,710 173,710
SE B Provision for impairment (30,237) (33,359)
265,549 265,200
FEUHT B A IR Due from subsidiaries 480,822 463,199

i PNGIE e Provision against amounts due
L from subsidiaries (102,000) (102,000)
378,822 361,199
644,371 626,399

PDEARBEEZ Due from subsidiaries classified
JEUSBH B A R IE as current assets 173,772 141,317

BB AR Z AT EEIE - &
B UARBERGEE AR RRK
+ AR RNER - ETBEAMN
B BNZE(E B TR B A Bl 2 5K IA
BE173,772,0008 L (ZE—F
£ :141,317,000787T) °

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and not repayable within the next twelve months from the
reporting date, except for amounts due from subsidiaries
of HK$173,772,000 (2010: HK$141,317,000) which are
repayable on demand.
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18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2011

BB AR BT ¢ are as follows:
R/ RAREL
AL/ BETRAEE BHAAL
BaRkEEnY Nominal value of Percentage of equity interest
Place of incorporation/ paid-up attributable to the Company
£ registration registered/issued BE i FEEK
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
EREHRERBRAR Bk REREE 0BT SRR 100 - EREHRITE
Amco Jewelry Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$10 each Diamond trading
and polishing
Brangredi Limited & 1V REREE 18T SRR - 100 HEEHES
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Jewellery trading
CJ. (UK) Limited RE 1,000k BRAME 1 £ 2 Bmk - 100 REEMHE
United Kingdom 1,000 ordinary shares Jewellery wholesaling
of GBP1 each
ERERARAR &b 100 REREE 18T BB - 100 #hES
Conti Diamond Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Diamond trading
Continental Investment A 100,000 KB REE 1 ELZ TR 100 - REER
Company Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares of Investment holding
HK$1 each
{BHIKE (IF) ERAR" i B 817K 35,000,000 &7 - 100 S
Mainland China  Paid up capital of HK$35,000,000 Jewellery manufacturing
ERAEEHRARAR B 10,000,000 REMEE 1 702 & Bk 100 - KEAMRERIS
Continental Jewellery (Mfg.) Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares of Jewellery manufacturing
Limited HK$1 each and wholesaling
B ERR AR &R 2RERERE BTz LRk - 100 ES T
Continental Property Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Property investment
Holdings Limited

(al
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+/\ B AR ZHERE =) 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BAIRR/ ARAEL
AL/ EETRAEE BHADL
BRkEend Nominal value of Percentage of equity interest
Place of incorporation/ paid-up attributable to the Company
L registration registered/issued Ef R FEEK
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
DCGS Management Service Bh 10,000,000 (R B AREIfE 1 BT 2 EBIK - 100 RERR/RERD
Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 ordinary shares of EERH
HK$1 each Investment holding/providing
internal management
services
EEREARLA &b 50,000 B SR EE 107872 BB 100 - RERR
Diamond Creation Limited Hong Kong 50,000 ordinary shares of Investment holding
HK$1 each
Golden Creation Jewellery Bk SRERAE 1 ETZERR - 80 GEEHES
Limited Hong Kong 5 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Jewellery trading
Master Gold Development EBRIHS 1 REREE FT ERR - 100 REER
Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding
RHARRRARAR &b 600,000 REREE 10T EBKR 100 - RERR
Ming Xiu Diamond Cutting Hong Kong 600,000 ordinary shares of Investment holding
Factory Limited HK$10 each
RAER (BM)ERAR" e E &R 11,000,000 7 - 100 ERESRITE
Mainland China  Paid up capital of HK$11,000,000 Diamond trading
and polishing
Patford Company Limited A 100 RERAE100ETZ ERR - 100 NERE
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each Property investment
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+/\ B AR ZHEE ») 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BARER/ RAREL
ML,/ BETRAEE BEA
BakEend Nominal value of Percentage of equity interest
Place of incorporation/ paid-up attributable to the Company

£ registration registered/issued BE Rt FEEK

Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities

Realford Company Limited B 100 R EREE 10082 EBR - 100 NERE

Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each Property investment

ENERREERAR i 78,000 B EREE 1 BT BBR - 100 RARR/ READ

Wilber Corporate Services Hong Kong 78,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 5%

Limited Investment holding/
providing internal
corporate services

Yett Holdings Limited EBRAEE  100REREE1 XL EER 100 - REER

British Virgin Islands 100 ordinary shares Investment holding
of US$1 each

Precious Palace International SERTHS | REREE 1 FT SRR - 100 REER

Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of US$1 each Investment holding

ERREARAT £ 1REREE1 BT ERBR - 100 NERE

Well Friendship Investment Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 each Property investment

Limited

# R ATz EE 5 Wholly foreign-owned enterprise registered in the Mainland
B - China.

* BB GERSTMEY . Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms. The
FTER AT EER 2 Hih aggregate net assets of these subsidiaries not audited by BDO
KERARIZE - EBREBILE amounted to approximately 5% of the Group's total net assets.
RREFMELAAR DA
HZHBRREEFELED
EAREEEEFELTES% °

BEDA - FRIRARDT M The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

BRARINDEEZENFE 2 E4 in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the

SRARRK AR SR B A EFE 2 B AED results for the year or formed a substantial portion of the

5o BEER AR EANE Q] net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries

ZHIEREERRERBMHITR would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.
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o

+h - REBEARZER 19.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

rEHE EA/NS|
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
T THET FET TFHET
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

JE LTS ~ #AKZR Unlisted shares, at cost = = 9,385 9,385
BLEEFE Share of net assets 6,231 6,719 = =
AR Provision for impairment (3,898) (3,898) (9,385) (9,385)
2,333 2,821 - —
i N\ B 2 458k Balances with associates
REE RAF
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

FET FET FiET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

JEUE LN AIZIE  Due from associates 1,277 1,461 8 8
R E R Provision for impairment (1,259) (1,259) = -

18 202 8 8
JERIEEE X EZIE  Due to associates - (335) = =

BE_T——FR_F-FERX
A= B LA R R
N EER B IAE

BMENT 2 EHRTEET - 2
B R EMEFEIZBERE o

There was no movement in impairment losses in respect of
amount due from associates during the years ended 30 June
2011 and 2010.

The balances with associates are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.
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+h REERRZER ) 19.

ik A%FEERE 2 AN E B
BRAZHMBEERRLLT -

as follows:

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information of the Group’s
associates extracted from their management accounts are

2011 2010
FET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEBE Total assets 15,060 24,385
BiE/RE Total liabilities (2,275) (20,923)
Week Revenue 17,709 19,419
FAEE Loss for the year (2,285) (1,539)
RZE—FA=1+H FZ Particulars of the principal associates as at 30 June 2011 are
B AR ZFHEIT - as follows:
BdRER/ R AV
BERTRAEE BERGEnE  AREEAFGERADL
Nominal value of Place of incorporation/ Percentage of
8 paid-up registered/ registration ownership interest TEER
Name issued share capital and operations attributable to the Group  Principal activities
HEENEHERAF EARAARH9,0932447C B, 36 REBHRERYE
General Jewellery (Shanghai) Paid up capital of Mainland China 36 Jewellery manufacturing
Company Limited" RMB9,093,244 and wholesaling
ENREEHRERAR! 1000 ERAEETL ERR (30 50 KEAMRE
Real Jewellery Limited" 1,000 ordinary shares of Hong Kong 50 Jewellery manufacturing
HK$1 each

* FRBELERRIAER
PERABLIZERRZEM
PR N AR -

BERR - ERIIRARE 2B
ERAIDEEFEARFE RGNS
M“TZ¥ZEYZE}5XZIK’$IF1E
B NREEFEL BRI
BEER %Tmﬁiﬁm%ﬁ%‘f@TZ%
BREEHRERMHIIE -
length.

Not audited by BDO Limited or other BDO member firms.

The above table lists the associates of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the share
of associates’ results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the share of net assets of the associates by the
Group. To give details of other associates would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
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“t+REFEEHEEZ  20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

= ENTITIES
REH
Group
2011 2010
FBT FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 87,026 64,666
BT —[HHRESEE Loan to a jointly controlled entity
B 330,300 255,800
417,326 320,466

BT —BARZEH BERERZR

The movement in impairment losses in respect of the loan to

BEEEINT a jointly controlled entity during the year was as follows:
2011 2010
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REF 2 8458 Balance at beginning of the year = 11,670
s Amount written off = (11,670)
RERZ BRFE Balance at end of the year - =
BT —HAREHEE 2ERTY The loan to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, interest-
EEW R RBANGEERRE free and not repayable within twelve months from the

T EARERE - reporting date.
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“+REFEEHE®Z  20. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED
A ) ENTITIES (continued)
rEE
Group
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEU — £ EIE T E B2 FIE Due from a jointly controlled entity 110
JEM—RI L RHEHIZEBFIE Due to a jointly controlled entity (14) (5)

HRIEHE 58 2 AR TR -

% B NN B A /A EIE

o

The balances with jointly controlled entities are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

R-_FE——FA=+H = Particulars of the principal jointly controlled entities as at 30
HEP ST BN June 2011 are as follows:
AN
BoREeny  AREEGFEEREAL
BRARAEE Place of incorporation/ Percentage of
£ Nominal value of registration ownership interest TEEH
Name issued share capital and operations attributable to the Group  Principal activities
Wealth Plus Developments S000RERAEE 1 ZT EAR  ABERLES 50 AR
Limited 50,000 ordinary shares British Virgin lslands Investment holding

of US$1 each
ERERARAT 10,000 RERAE 1 BT BRkK B 50 BRE%
Multi-Minerals Limited 10,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong Trading of mineral ores

of HK$1 each
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“t+RidREFERZ 20

R

BERtAREH
SEREARZEFEE

AN
#aEAn

INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED

ENTITIES (continued)

The aggregate amounts relating to the jointly controlled
entities attributable to the Group that have been included

5 ¢ in the Group’s consolidated financial statements are as
follows:
2011 2010
FET FEIT
HK$000 HK$'000
EMENEE Non-current assets 379,530 316,361
MBNEE Current assets 80,660 54,661
460,190 371,022
ERBAG Non-current liabilities (358,378) (280,410)
mENE R Current liabilities (14,786) (25,946)
(373,164) (306,356)
BEFAE Net assets 87,026 64,666
WA Income 14,252 89,401
FsZ Expenses (8,893) (36,580)
FERHE A Profit for the year 5,359 52,821
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“+— At EZEME 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL

3 ASSETS
REEE
Group
2011 2010
FBT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
WA E - ZATE « Listed equity investments, at fair value:
B Hong Kong 18,527 23,393
b (FEE @) Elsewhere (note (a)) 114,960 1,166
133,487 24,559
FJEETRRAIEE - 3K Unlisted equity investments, at cost
(H¥3E(0) (note (c)) 11,339 11,339
BB R Provision for impairment (7,108) (7,108)
4,231 4,231
st Total 137,718 28,790
W& zTE Market value of listed investments 133,487 24,559
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FRA=ZTHIFE

“t— At EZEME

Brat -

(@

=)

RZZE—ZTFA=H'£AQ
Al—XRKEEZENBRRE
B AR AR ER ) &
Famous Key Holdings Limited
([Famous Key|) (—RAHEE
ZESFHMKZZBR AR
AARRMITESHREZ LA
(TREE]D)Z2EER)LE
E % #% © A mFamous Key i
8% & #£2,239,873 f& Macarthur
Minerals Limited([ MMS ) B&{7 ©
RE B FEE I EMinMetals
Mining Corporation Limited
(TMinMetals]) (=RR BB
MK Z2BERRAGT)FTLS—
P E & W% MM MinMetals
I B 3,144,654 RMMS % 17 ©
MinMetals S RISEAER =T
*ﬁﬁtﬂ+£ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ$”
AIIEMITE S o REK Ll iR
Z%ﬁ&%#é RZT——
F=A=+H8 " BEi@FFamous
Key & MinMetals 31T AJ #2 AR 32
BB PATE 3.05 M7t (FEER
243547870 ) Y fE & #£5,384,527
hMM%ﬂ C B BHE2H

MiEE=+—= -MMSA—ZKNinZE
AEMZBHFR ST L2 BN
AR HEBZEBHARNBMNTESE
R RAEAERATS 28REA
O o

BB LETRAKZEMERF
AABTHK - EF2RAE B
THRERRETBRAKED R
B WERAFEEREPRE
ZREE1E7,864,0008 L (==
—ZTFF)o

ZEIE EMRARE IR A
R ERES - B R%ER
BWEAERMSHRE - £EF
RE - ZEFLETMHRAEEZ
FREESEEAFTEES B2
—E——FR T -TEXA
=+BHIESFERIELETRA
EIR KA RE 2 B
& o

21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 3 June 2010, Trade Bloom Holdings Limited (“Trade Bloom"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Famous Key Holdings
Limited (“Famous Key”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability and wholly-owned by Mr.
Chan Sing Chuk, Charles (“Mr. Chan"), executive director of
the Company, to acquire an aggregate of 2,239,873 shares
of Macarthur Minerals Limited (“MMS"”) from Famous Key.
On the same date, Trade Bloom also entered into another sale
and purchase agreement with MinMetals Mining Corporation
Limited (“MinMetals”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, to acquire 3,144,654 shares of MMS
from MinMetals. Mr. Fang Gang, a director of MinMetals, was
appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 15
July 2010. Having satisfied the terms and conditions of the
aforesaid agreements, the acquisitions of the total 5,384,527
shares of MMS were completed on 30 March 2011 at the market
price of Canadian dollars 3.05 (equivalent to HK$24.354) by
the issue of convertible note to Famous Key and MinMetals as
detailed in note 32. MMS is an Australian company listed on
the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada and its principal activity
is exploration and development of an area with significant
prospective iron-ore located in Western Australia.

There was a significant decline in the market value of a listed
equity investment in Hong Kong during the year. The directors
consider that such a decline indicates that the listed equity
investment has been impaired and an impairment loss of
HK$7,864,000 (2010: Nil) has been recognised in profit or loss
for the year.

The unlisted equity investments are stated at cost less provision
for impairment as they do not have quoted market prices in an
active market. The directors are of the opinion that the carrying
amounts of the unlisted equity investments approximate their
fair values. There was no movement in provision for impairment
in respect of unlisted equity investments at cost during the years
ended 30 June 2011 and 2010.
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—+= - REABWIRIR 22. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES
AEHE ARE

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
Notes  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mz FET FBT TIET FET
R Promissory notes (@) 11,449 11,449 5,743 5,743
Hh REAEUEIA Other long term receivables (b) 3,167 3,167 = =
14,616 14,616 5,743 5,743

MERE Provision for impairment (14,616) (14,616) (5,743) (5,743)

Mt Notes:

(@ R-E——FXA=+HAZ (@  Out of the promissory notes of HK$11,449,000 as at 30
11,449 00035 70 (= B — T 4F June 2011 (2010: HK$11,449,000), HK$7,828,000 (2010:
11,449,000 75 ) 2 & 35 = & HK$7,828,000) is secured, interest-free and repayable by 15
fh o H 7,828,000 (=& annual instalments commencing on 1 October 2001. The
— T4 7,828,000/ 7C) B E remaining balance of HK$3,621,000 (2010: HK$3,621,000) is
R BN AR -—EE—F unsecured, interest-free and repayable by 13 annual instalments
+A—BESTREHE - & commencing on 15 March 2003. In view of default in repayment
£43,621,000 8T (ZE—4& - of the promissory notes, a full impairment was made in prior
3,621,000/870) BB - B8 TR
rEH-_TE=F=A+HA
BH+=FH#E ENHBRE
BAGLEE BERABEFEE
HEERE °

by M-F——FXA=+H % (b)  As at 30 June 2011, the balance represents a shareholder’s

EREB BB T —RHESRER
A)Z—3A3,167,000/8 (= —
T4 3,167,000787T) 2R E
R RBEEARS  EIER
MENR-_ZE—REANA=1H
Big  ERESREARNNG
BRETEE  ERBEFE
EH 2 ER(E °

loan of HK$3,167,000 (2010: HK$3,167,000) advanced
to an investee company which is interest-free, unsecured
and repayable on 30 June 2015. In view of poor financial
performance of the investee company, a full impairment was
made in prior years.

(=al
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22. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements for impairment provision of long term

N receivables were as follows:
REE NN
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FAET TE7T FET TrET
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
REF) 2 A58 Balance at beginning
of the year 14,616 36,176 5,743 5,743
R Amount written off = (21,560) = =
RERZ 458 Balance at end of the year 14,616 14,616 5,743 5,743
—_+=-F& 23. INVENTORIES
rEE
Group

2011 2010
FET FETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
R E Raw materials 125,130 120,123
H 2K Work in progress 5,717 5,459
5K ih Finished goods 136,982 150,379
267,829 275,961
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

REE

Group
2011 2010
FET FEIT
HK$000 HK$'000
EZ 5 eI EIE Trade receivables 143,484 140,447
B RUGRIB R B R Less: provision for impairment of receivables (27,000) (27,072)
B 5 EWGIE — F5E Trade receivables — net 116,484 113,375

AEE—RRRITRENREE
BEFZIEE  BRRENELEF
HRETSEFZERGRR - 84
EFHERREER - AKER
IE ST ECOR (B R R UG IR M 45 BAR
26| - MHKERSREEETE
HIETTERE] -

REEHR @ IREE®RE 20
BREEEE S REIRFIEZ BRE D
T :

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers
according to industry practice together with consideration
of their creditability, repayment history and years of
establishment. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by senior management.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of provision, as
at the reporting date, based on the date of recognition of
the sale, is as follows:

REE

Group
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
0—30H 0 - 30 days 71,625 48,509
31—60H 31 - 60 days 22,706 39,402
61—90H 61— 90 days 7,705 17,772
90 HIA £ Over 90 days 14,448 7,692
116,484 113,375

HRAREAZHEP 7 ARt
REH - SREZRUGIRMS -
WEEPEERR

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
receivables, as the Group has a large number of customers
which are internationally dispersed.

~
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fRERACE - IRIEAKRERBFEK
TRAI B 2 e SE - BN
T REBEEREZEKEFIE
BEEMEE - BB RUGIRRER

24,

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against trade
receivables directly. The movement in the provision for

B2 BB impairment of trade receivables is as follows:

rEE

Group
2011 2010
FET TFHET
HK$’000 HK$°000
REY 2 6158 Balance at beginning of the year 27,072 27,989
BHERRERGE Impairment losses recognised 768 668
R Amount written off (840) (1,585)
RERZ R Balance at end of the year 27,000 27,072

REZLER  AREZEHREK
FRIR IR [ 5l o B 28 B TE R
18 - [ERIREE 5 AR
ERIBANKZEFER -

AEENERE B 2B SRR
A B MR B AR 2 Rk D

At each reporting date, the Group’s trade receivables were
individually and collectively determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in default or delinquency in payments.

The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at
the reporting date, based on due date and net of provision,

anr - is as follows:

rEE

Group
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
R B R ARRE Neither past due nor impaired 92,497 92,016
#HI0—30H 0 - 30 days past due 10,464 14,186
#HI31—60 B 31 - 60 days past due 5,763 2,953
#H61—90 B 61— 90 days past due 4,166 1,776
#HI91—180 H 91 — 180 days past due 2,691 1,156
#H7181—360 H 181 — 360 days past due 903 1,277
#HI360 H A E Over 360 days past due - 11
116,484 113,375
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“+m - BSEWRIEE) 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

14 s B SR (B 2 B 5 FE WK IR Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
B3R % WA B R FRED 8k 2 B P relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
B - there was no recent history of default.

EEHEERE 2 E S EKKIE Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
HEZZREER  ZERFPEAR related to a large number of diversified customers that
SEZEERERIT - RIBBE had a good track record with the Group. Based on past
&y BEERERE  ZEE%T experience, the management believes that no impairment
FELRERE  BAFEEEXR allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there
WREBREE) - BERDEARIE has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
A 2B E] o ZNER [N A it 2 B balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group did
HEI R B 2 B 5 FE WG IE R B not hold any collateral in respect of trade receivables that
Ef R o are past due but not impaired.

B RWIEER S - Bt Trade receivables are short term in nature and hence the
EERAEERESRKFIEZ directors consider the carrying amount of trade receivables
BREEEEQNFEES - approximates its fair value at the reporting date.

“t+HR-WURNFEESANE 25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

BZEMEE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
REE ARAF]
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

FE FET FET FEr
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

B TR AES - Listed equity securities in Hong

mmE Kong, at market value 13,874 11,517 = =
AR =R 2B Redemption option of convertible

EEE(HEF=1=) note (note 32) 1,361 - 1,361 -

15,235 11,517 1,361 =

ARFEF ARGz EBEEN Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
RABSRERNELE R — presented within the section on operating activities as part
MAZIREEESEFH 2 of changes in working capital in the consolidated statement
e of cash flows.
ARFESABRSEZERHEER Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
FEEZFH T ABRRAZEME profit or loss are recorded in other operating income/
giss(Fx) ° (expenses) in profit or loss.
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“+A RERREEHE 26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(=)

RENREFEBEATED ¢

Cash and cash equivalents include the following
components:

REH 2N
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

TET TET TET T
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$'000

0 & MIRTT4EER Cash and bank balances 49,867 84,940 76 83
RS HATE HATF AR Short term time deposits = 69,000 = =
49,867 153,940 76 83

RITASLRE HRITERM X
REUFBIAR -

RZEBE—ZFEFA=+H ' &
B F BT SR TF FRR SR 1T+ W iR
BEBAEHRTERARAE
B.0.7% BEUFIE - EIHA B &/
A WHEETNERE —8F
SREAZ AR A B B9 ATHR TS BNEFEX
H e

REERE RIBTEBBEER
FEZRTERAAREE
25,680,000/ (= —Z4F :
2,384,000/ 7L ) RI1T &84 o A
RETT] B BRI o REFEREIIN
P& & I (515 R AT~ 5 0B B
BIEMRTE - AEE A RIEERE
FRINE 75 2 SRITHEITINE
jﬁ% o

R-ZE—ZEFX A=1TH E=F
R BRNEESE B RAERT
REHERER  SEREHTF
RN FEEREELESEAE
H o

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

As at 30 June 2010, short term time deposits were placed
with the banks and earned interest at the respective short
term bank deposit rates at 0.7% per annum. They had a
maturity for two weeks and were eligible for immediate
cancellation without receiving any interest for the last
deposit period.

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$5,680,000 (2010: HK$2,384,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (""RMB’’) placed with banks in the
Mainland China. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

As at 30 June 2010, the directors consider that the fair value
of the short term time deposits was not materially different
from its carrying amount because of the short maturity
period on its inception.
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“t+t -BESEMRIE 27. TRADE PAYABLES
REEFR - EHEMNIEZ BRie An ageing analysis of the trade payables at the reporting
DT - date is as follows:
REE
Group
2011 2010
FET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
0—30H 0 - 30 days 90,351 55,941
31—60H — 60 days 24,747 28,302
61—90H - 90 days 20,689 27,188
90 HI E Over 90 days 7,735 36,214
143,522 147,645
—+)\ > ESETE 28. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
REE
Group
2011 2010
BE afE BE BE
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
FET FET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
EHIEEEH Forward currency contracts
(BzE @) (note (a)) 126 - — (498)
Hist - Note:
(a) BHEEAHUHEE(ZZ—F (@  The forward currency contracts are denominated in British
F - ;Qf,%) =g FER LR — Pounds (2010: British Pounds) and maturity in less than one year
F£(= T DRA—4F) o (2010: less than one year).
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HEZT——F X A=1TALFE
“+h - RITEX-EHRM 29. BANK LOANS, SECURED
RITEREREZATOT ¢ The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as
follows:
i 3
Group
30/06/2011 30/06/2010 01/07/2009
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&31) (&31)
(restated) (restated)
wEEE Current liabilities
BR—FABEZ Portion of loans from banks due for
RITEFE D repayment within one year 201,139 167,500 141,633
AR —FRERY Portion of loans from banks due for
BARENGEFIE  repayment after one year which contain
ZRITEFE D a repayable on demand clause 34,000 11,494 541,263
235,139 178,994 682,896
R_FE——&XA=+H " =8 At 30 June 2011, the interest-bearing banks loans were due
RITEZTEEB T for repayment as follows:
rEE
Group
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$°000
RITER—FHEA Bank loans, secured:
AR—FNER Repayable within one year 201,139 167,500
ARE_FEER Repayable in the second year 34,000 11,494
235,139 178,994

M BEERERBHE
Zﬁﬂ%’%’ﬂﬂiﬂﬂ?ﬁ&&ﬁ?ﬁ

BB IIEN 7 2 of any repayment on demand clause.

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect
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(&

RZZB——FRA=1TH &
B2 SRITE R IA T HERIEM -

@ AKEREMER(KHE
TH) RETHE L wME
F(MFE+R) OXERC:

(o) AREUEHZ ABER :

@ ARFEEZEMBEAF
ZEBB R

(d) BRERERETRER
R RITTER BT JEAR

R-T-BFAA=+A %%
B2 SRATEERR A A T AR AR

@ AEBEREBEYWE(WE
TH) RETHE L RE
F(ME+R) OEEMRE:
K

(b) ARFUEHZ RAER -

REB BT ECRITER
223,139,000 T (=T —F4F :
167,500,000 7T ) Z ) F B F Fl| &
B1.36% E3.04%(—FE—F4F:
2.55% £2.59%) - ARBIRIT
E 12,000,000 T (ZE—=
11,494,000 87T ) Z EEFH
RE611%E7.56% (ZFE—=F
& :599%£6.15%) °

29.

BANK LOANS, SECURED (continued)

At 30 June 2011, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by the followings:

(@) legal charges over the Group’s investment property
(note 17) and certain of the leasehold land and
buildings (note 15);

(b)  corporate guarantees executed by the Company;

(¢)  ordinary shares of an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company; and

(d) guarantees from the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region, under the Special Loan
Guarantee.

At 30 June 2010, the Group’s banking facilities were
secured by the followings:

(@) legal charges over the Group’s investment property
(note 17) and certain of the leasehold land and
buildings (note 15); and

(b)  corporate guarantees executed by the Company.

The bank loans of the Group denominated in HK$ of
HK$223,139,000 (2010: HK$167,500,000) have floating
interest rates ranging from 1.36% to 3.04% (2010:
2.55% to 2.59%) per annum. The RMB bank loans of
HK$12,000,000 (2010: HK$11,494,000) have fixed interest
rates ranging from 6.11% to 7.56% (2010: 5.99% to
6.15%) per annum.

w
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=1 FEFIERENK

BE_ZT——FA=1THLF
B - FEEH S B EIN B
THER - FIEHIRSRERAEHR
BB ER -

R=T—FFXA=TA - KR
AR - o8 RBARS
5 bt A = 8L PO -
it
HEEES T

St B m&ERRA
ke

ZHRRELE - RERBER
‘RERBSFARR+-EARE
5\%0

+Z - AR E

B A=+ —FraFa - AR
AEBRZE——F=A=+
H 7 Blle Famous Key ([ A]# 3%
ZHEA]) & MinMetals ([ A #f%
ZEBDBETASHEHREER
58,170,000/ 581,667,000/
JC2 A IR IR BT B MMS
B2 RAEB - AR T A KA
HREEBINTE BT E
RN IAAR(B 0.42 76317 - I
RETHHRBMEEmE BE
gq o

nH—

30.

31.

32.

LOANS FROM NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the write back of the
loans from non-controlling interests is recognised in the
profit or loss. The non-controlling interests have agreed to
waive the loans due thereto.

As at 30 June 2010, the loans were unsecured, interest-
free and not repayable within the next twelve months
from the reporting date. The directors considered that the
carrying amounts of loans from non-controlling interests
approximated their fair values.

DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and not
repayable within the next twelve months from the reporting
date.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE

As detailed in note 21, the consideration in relation to
the acquisition of the shares of MMS are satisfied by the
issuance of convertible notes to Famous Key (“Convertible
Note A”) and MinMetals (“Convertible Note B") of principal
amount approximately equivalent to HK$58,170,000 and
HK$81,667,000 respectively on 30 March 2011 by the
Company. The Convertible Note A and Convertible Note B
are issued at a zero coupon rate and at a conversion price
of HK$0.42 per conversion share which will be mature two
years from the date of the issue.
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SLATBENFERET I BRBERE
mE » REGEAGER AR
SE2H B A E A R RA SRR
0.2 BT AT RBERA SR L
28 (M0 BRARARE
AL - RBITAIA ATEIRRIR
HERR K2IEIE AT 1582 X B
R ERR A - AAF R
FNARBEREBEEHASERE
100% ) E A% & B T A AT AR R
& e

RETAIMEKREEBA » A&
2 9 Bl A MinMetals & % 37
72 A 22 420,000,000/ 7T &
61,667,000 LIz & ' 1EA A
BREEB B TEBEONSNRE -
BER_Z——F=A=1+H%
TR EER  EFRA 0 W
883,144,654 MMS fX (D B
TR SREEN - Bt - WiE
MMS J% 15 3 43, /5 LA B 17 AT 42 A%
FEAKRIFESMR(E 81,667,000
JLIENT ©

RZFE—F=A=+H" &R
Al Famous Key 21T AF(EA
50,518,000 L 2 T2 B A%
ZIEA fEAWEE2,239,873 1%
MMS fiZ{n 2 RAB o AIERRERA
RZZE——F=A=1tHZAF
BB B E MR 5L TR
=RBR AR ([FIEEFT ) #EITIH
B °

32.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued)

In respect of all the convertible notes issued during the year,
the noteholders have the right to convert, the whole but
not in part of the principal amount of the convertible notes
into the ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.42 each at
any time prior to the maturity date of the convertible notes.
At any time after the date of the issue of all the convertible
notes and before the fifth business days before the date of
maturity, the Company may redeem all of the convertible
notes at a price being equal to 100% of the face value of
the full principal amount of the convertible notes.

Prior to the issue of the Convertible Note B, the Group
had deposited a sum of HK$20,000,000 and a sum of
HK$61,667,000 to MinMetals and an independent lawyer
respectively which served as the intended redemption
consideration of the Convertible Note B. Despite of the
issuance of the Convertible Note B as at 30 March 2011,
the directors considered that, in substance, the acquisition
of 3,144,654 shares of MMS was indeed settled by
cash consideration. Therefore, the acquisition of shares
of MMS was deemed to be satisfied by the issuance
of the Convertible Note A and cash consideration of
HK$81,667,000.

On 30 March 2011, the Company issued a zero coupon
Convertible Note A with fair value of HK$50,518,000
to Famous Key as the consideration of the acquisition of
2,239,873 shares of MMS. The fair value of Convertible
Note A as at 30 March 2011 was valued by an independent
professional valuer, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited
(“LCH").

(5]
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32.

CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued)

The fair value of the liability component as at 30 March
2011 was calculated using discounted cash flow method
by LCH. The fair value of the derivative component was
calculated using Binomial Option Pricing Model on the
acquisition date of the shares of MMS and as at 30 June
2011 by LCH. The fair value of the convertible note as at 30
March 2011 was calculated using Binomial Option Pricing
Model by LCH. As at acquisition date of shares of MMS, the
difference between the fair value of the Convertible Note A
and the fair value of the combined instrument representing
conversion option for the noteholder to convert the
Convertible Note A into equity was included in equity as
convertible note equity reserve.

The carrying values of the derivative component, liability
component and equity component of the Convertible Note
A are as follow:

FEERADT
Group and Company
BOEEE L) iy

Redemption Liability Equity @t
option  component component Total

THT TAT FAT TAT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

NEHR R FE

EHMERX

Net carrying amounts on
initial recognition
Imputed interest expenses - (974) - (974)

1,620 (49,828) (2,310) (50,518)

ATEZE Fair value change (259) = = (259)
R=Z——FxA=1H Net carrying amounts at
2 BREE 30 June 2011 1,361 (50,802) (2,310) (51,751)

fE 55 F B S2 47 974,000 /8 L E
REBEZE-_ZT——FA=1+H
HFEZERNER TEB
YRR EE A 2 B &5 M5
8.05% B E R FF = A E R A

S
EAH -

Imputed interest expenses of approximately HK$974,000
have been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended
30 June 2011 and are calculated using the effective interest
method by applying the effective interest rate of 8.05% per
annum to the liability component of the Convertible Note A.
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=+ AIRBRER @ 32. CONVERTIBLE NOTE (continued)
BEERE  UARBOBRER 2 In the opinion of the directors, the contracts to acquire
A RWEMMS ik fn 2 & # KRR the shares of MMS in exchange for the convertible note
SREBSHRITE  BIEATE and the cash consideration represent financial instruments
BHAER - R_ZT——F=A and they were accounted for as derivative contracts. Upon
=+ B EKRKIBEMMS R D% - completion of the acquisition of shares of MMS on 30
MTHEABHNBRFELEBKREMMS March 2011, there was a loss on derivative contracts arising
[ 1n 2 E548 1,049,0008 7T * A from the acquisition of shares of MMS of HK$1,049,000
AEEREBEE_T——F A and such loss was recognised in the profit or loss for the year
=TRLEFEZBEPER - ended 30 June 2011.
BERNEBE=T——FA="1 Further details of the principal terms and conditions
HIEFEEITAIRBREEA KRR regarding the issue of the Convertible Note A and
HIREIREB 2 F 2R IR Z Convertible Note B during the year ended 30 June 2011
E—THBERERAARIBHAC have been set out in the circular of the Company dated 25
T—TFXNAZ+HBAZEEK - June 2010.

== IREBIE 33. DEFERRED TAX

The following are major deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the financial statements and the movements

REE BT FE 2 2E) during the current and prior years:
REE Group
MEFIEHE R IERE
Accelerated tax Provision for st
depreciation receivables Total
FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(restated)
R-ZBZENE+A—H Balance at 1 July 2009,
224 A=1H 30 June 2010 and
R=T-TF L A-R 25K 1 July 2010 16 (9,217) (9,201)
NG Credited to profit or loss
i) for the year = (109) (109)
RZE——FAA=1AZER Balance at 30 June 2011 16 (9,326) (9,310)

~
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=+= - iBEHRIE =) 33. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

EXEHRBEERABERATEAS
BMREERNPRBAREBEESA
RN B AR S R B AT S R A
— ISR T - Ty R S AR -

TH & BEFTAEE EIHEE
E o WS B IS AR R & A5
HE -

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority.

The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position:

REE
Group
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’'000 HK$'000
(&%)
(restated)
EEBIEBE Deferred tax liabilities 16 16
EEFIBEE Deferred tax assets (9,326) (9,217)
(9,310) (9,201)

o

NEBEHEEFE4998,046,000 78
t( =& —Z 4 : 100,547,000
BIL) ¢ % ETHIB A K 3| %
ERIB 2 A RARRERTEF] ©
ERZERBARIBT A 8
PR S AR SR FE SR B A - E I
AAZEHIBERBELCHIEA
B > AE)FHIIE46,929,0008 7T
(ZZ=—Z4 : 51,733,00087T)
BR_Z—RF(BEXF) 2T
[ BHAEIER - Bt KB BRI
R B4t o

ADF
R=F——%F<A=+A8 2

B EAE A B AR R IR
BE(CE-TF 8)-

The Group has tax losses of approximately HK$98,046,000
(2010: HK$100,547,000) that are available for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies which
incurred the losses. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of these losses as it is not probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
these unused tax losses can be utilised. Unused tax losses
of HK$46,929,000 (2010: HK$51,733,000) will expire in
various dates up to and including 2015. Other unused tax
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Company

As at 30 June 2011, the Company did not have any
significant unprovided deferred tax liabilities (2010: Nil).
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=+m - 8#ThlRA 34. ISSUED CAPITAL

skEE01ET BREEOET

ZERRHE ZEBREE

Number of Number of
##7#  ordinary shares  ordinary shares At
Notes  of HK$0.1 each of HK$0.01 each  HK$'000

HERK Authorised:

RZETNE+HA—R At 1 July 2009 3,500,000,000 - 350,000

BRin 174 Share Subdvision (@) (3,500,000,000)  35,000,000,000 -

“Z-TERA=TH At 30 June 2010 and

RZZ—%,A=+H 30 June 2011 - 35,000,000,000 350,000

BRTRBERE Issued and fully paid:

RZZZNE+A—R At 1 July 2009 312,830,334 - 31283

Rin 174 Share Subdivision (@) (312,830,334)  3,128,303,340 -

RZZ-ZFA=1H At 30 June 2010 and

—ET-——%xA=1H 30 June 2011 - 3,128,303,340 31,283

Hiet - Notes:

@ RKRZZE—ZTFMA=+H'=K (@) On 30 April 2010, the directors of the Company proposed that
NGIE 3= NG N each of the existing issued and unissued shares of par value of
REEO.1BITHREEEITR HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company be subdivided
REFTRD T AFTA0.01 7T into ten shares of HK$0.01 each. Pursuant to the resolution
TR - REBER=-Z—F passed in an extraordinary general meeting held on 18 May
FRA+TNBRTHRIRR 2010, each of the existing issued and unissued ordinary shares
ASRBHIRBER  AAAIKR of par value of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of the Company
AR EREEO.1EITHIRAE was subdivided into ten ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each (“Share
BEORABTERERIFEAXNS Subdivision”).

1%0.0178 T ey A E AR (T A 7
A o
b)) RZTEZAF+—AZ=+= (b)  On 23 November 2009, a subscription agreement was entered

B ARAE—ZBIE=H
RN —MREHZE  REAR
BE’1.75T (BRMH 4R R
B8 £ 521,764,705 B% 37 % i@ A%
(B IFR4ERT) » FTEBBRAR
BEREEHEERETK -
HBHERKE=TN@ - R
BEHZREEAHPREE=Z
——FEXNA=tHLFEAR
Exgz—T——FRATAH
AR=—T——F+—A+Ah
A FEEHRWE=T/\(a)

EiimERRZBER _F
——FRA=THEREE#E
ZEFBHERZ BEIARTT °

between the Company and an independent third party which
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of 21,764,705 (before
Share Subdivision) new ordinary shares at a subscription price of
HK$1.7 each (before Share Subdivision). The subscription of the
new ordinary shares will be completed upon the satisfaction of
the sales and purchase agreement as detailed in note 38(a). The
long stop date of the subscription was extended twice to 19 May
2011 and 19 November 2011 as detailed in note 38(a) during the
year ended 30 June 2011.

The subscription of the abovementioned new ordinary shares
was not completed at 30 June 2011 and up to the date of
approval of these financial statements.

O
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=+F - LR ES 35. UNLISTED WARRANTS

(=)

RZZEZAEFE+AEA - K
A 7% B EEDigichina Trading
Limited & Paramount Ability
Corporation ([Ef]) (BHAE
SN E=7) 1 R (AR
mEl) BRREFRER U
RIEEBER - R KLHBAR
% BRERESRERREZT(IAR
AIEBHAEXBEE AR
EHERERARRAYMEEHESE
B IREE - BEESHE
BRI 2 IRTG W aE - AR RE
B LA 17254 7T (Bt # 48
Al 2 BA% (HEHNER A 45
86,250,000/ 7T) * M ER B
#1725,000,00017 JE_E TR AR AR
B (R IFAAT) ©

REHEBEBEEITIELEMR
BEZSsB(ZE—ZF— A
+NAH)BER EEFE
—t+HEEA - SEMEARF
A HEBTEAE1.725
B (R hIFMART) {TE B R
7K & %A25,875,00078 L ( & R
15,000,000 7 3F L= 77 38 Bk 4 &
(B #F 40 AT ) ) &9 FE =T R AR
BRI AR R AERE - BRIE
BEHaEK R TR (FFRME
=+/\(a)) ° W LM EE L
RIENTERK - BB BRI TR
BN EE25,875,00078 702 3F F
TR 2 R R - FEE
MRIREFWNERER - R =T
—ZTFENA—HEEIELETRE
BRI ZB(ZE—ZF—A
+NAB)%=—+mEA AT
MER(REEEMA) - 8K
1.7257%8 70 (BB IR 4BRT) SR A
RNAEFNE B - B0 RIEEHT
ERE AR B 2R o

On 4 December 2009, the Company entered into service
agreements (the “Service Agreements”) with Digichina
Trading Limited and Paramount Ability Corporation (the
“Consultants”), independent third parties, respectively to
engage them as consultants for the provision of business
development, strategies and advisory services including
seeking suitable business projects for the development or
diversification of the business of the Company and suitable
business partners/investors from China for the Company for
fund raising projects. Under each of the Service Agreements
with the Consultants, the Company agreed to issue to
each of them 25,000,000 units of unlisted warrants shares
(before Share Subdivision) (the “Unlisted Warrants”) at the
price of HK$1.725 per share (before Share Subdivision)
where in aggregate equivalent to a total principal amount
of HK$86,250,000.

The Service Agreements shall come into force from the
date of the issue of the Unlisted Warrants on 18 January
2010 and shall continue for a period of twenty-four
months therefrom. Each of the Consultants undertakes
to the Company that they will not exercise any of the
subscription rights attached to the Unlisted Warrants
beyond the principal amount of HK$25,875,000,
equivalent to 15,000,000 units of Unlisted Warrants
(before Share Subdivision) at HK$1.725 per share (before
Share Subdivision), until and unless the satisfaction and
completion of the sale and purchase agreement as detailed
in note 38(a). If the aforesaid sale and purchase agreement
is not duly completed, the relevant Consultants’ rights to
exercise the Unlisted Warrants beyond the principal amount
of HK$25,875,000 shall lapse. The Unlisted Warrants
conferred the rights to subscribe for new ordinary shares
of the Company at HK$1.725 per share (before Share
Subdivision) for a period from 1 April 2010 to the day falling
twenty-four months after the date of issue of the Unlisted
Warrants on 18 January 2010 (both dates inclusive). Each
warrant carried the right to subscribe for one new share of
the Company.
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=+H-FELEHBBEEE  35. UNLISTED WARRANTS (continued)
(&)
REZE_FT—ZTFA=1THIE During the year ended 30 June 2010, the issue of the
FE %B’QK AR IE ETRR Unlisted Warrants was an equity-settled transaction
EtE R A S RRIRM 2 RS2 given that the Company granted Unlisted Warrants as
RAB - 1T LT RARMERE T9IA considerations for services rendered by the Consultants. The
REREE RS - BITIEL™T recognition and measurement of the issue of the Unlisted
RREZE CERRTEREETE Warrants should follow HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment.
I ISR E RIS 2 SR A MR D 2
i o
P 9F L TR RRIE 819 1 DA AR A2 All the Unlisted Warrants will be settled in equity. The
8 o RNA)WE RIS EEIE Company has no legal or constructive obligation to
EMRRIEE O ERSIHEERT repurchase or settle the Unlisted Warrants other than by
(BREEITAQRZBIRIN) o issuing the Company’s ordinary shares.
T%*iiﬂiﬁ?g@m%ﬁZK”“ﬂ The following table discloses details of the Company’s
FLETRREZREAFTEE Unlisted Warrants held by the Consultants and movement
g : in such holdings:
2011
EEMAREFHE IEEFIGITEE
Number Weighted average
of Unlisted Warrants exercise price
B
HKS$
RZZETNFLH—H Outstanding at 1 July 2009 i TEA
ARITE N/A N/A
i Granted 50,000,000 1.725
KRR P4 Adjusted upon Share
Subdivision 448,554,912 0.173
R=ZZE—ZFF,XA=+H Outstanding at 30 June
k=ZT——%F;"A=+H 2010and 30 June 2011
ARITE 498,554,912 0.173
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=+F - EEHREESE
A A RIE L TR T

35. UNLISTED WARRANTS (continued)

The exercisable periods of the Unlisted Warrants of the

™ Company were as follows:
2011 2010
IETH MEFS
E R e I LTRR 18
EEYE  Weighted ERHE Weighted
Number average Number average
of Unlisted exercise of Unlisted exercise
Warrants price Warrants price
BT BT
HK$ HK$
17158 - Exercisable periods:
“E-TENA-A 1 April 2010 to
£-F——%—R++H 17 January 2012 299,132,948 0.173 299,132,948 0.173
“Z-TENA-A 1 April 2010 to
E-F——F—FF+tHE* 17 lanuary 2012* 199,421,964 0.173 199,421,964 0.173
* ZEF LT RREEFE2ITHER @ The exercise of those unlisted warrants will be subject to the
REINEEHEZTK - 5518 completion of the sale and purchase agreement as detailed in
FHAMFE=1T\(a) ° note 38(a).

R-ZE——FNA=+HHERT
{2 IE_ETH RN RS 2 Mt
BTIAYOHABOSSF(ZE—F
£ : 155%)

EER5  BRERRGHAF
BEAA B - Bt - ZRH
ZRFHETIZRIE LR ER
HRFERTE © IE EMRAEE
B HETIH A AR EE
BAETE -

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the
Unlisted Warrants outstanding as at 30 June 2011 is 0.55
year (2010: 1.55 years).

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the services
provided by the Consultants could not be reasonably
estimated. Therefore, the fair value of the services was
measured by reference to the fair value of the Unlisted
Warrants. The fair value of the Unlisted Warrants was
determined by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.
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=173 - EEHRERES 35. UNLISTED WARRANTS (continued)

TR E —EX R EEERSN The following table lists the inputs to the Binomial Option
BABE  ARGTEREE_Z Pricing Model used for calculating the fair value of the
—ZFERNAZTRHIEFERLZ Unlisted Warrants granted during the year ended 30 June
FEETRBRER < AFE - 2010:
AR #24a B HA —2—Z2F—A+N\H
Date of start of services 18 January 2010
A fE (At #7480 AT) 3.45%87T
Share price (before Share Subdivision) HK$3.45
1TE(E (B HF48AT) 1.7257%87C
Exercise price (before Share Subdivision) HK$1.725
TaE R E (5L () 83.88%
Expected volatility (note (a)) 83.88%
FE_E TRk AERE 2 TEET A H (FRE (b)) 2F
Expected life of the Unlisted Warrants (note (b)) 2 years
2 [ B ) = (PR E () 0.435%
Risk-free rate (note (c)) 0.435%
TE BN B 2K 3.53%
Expected dividend yield 3.53%
Biat - Notes:
(@) TEHURIE : AR BEERBES (@)  Expected volatility: being the approximate historical volatility of
HHEART B TR E AR R ARMD closing prices of the shares of the Company in the past 2 years
W B R LR IE o immediately before the date of start of services.
(b) FELEMRREZ ZTEFH : 3 (b)  Expected life of the Unlisted Warrants: being the effective life of
FHRRERE 2 AREE - R the Unlisted Warrants estimated from the expected exercising
B TRERT T R EIAE SR 2 (5T © time frame.
(0 ERRAE : DEREAINEE () Risk-free rate: being the approximate yields to maturity of Hong
R 2 B HEE . Kong Exchange Fund Note.
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~

=+7% - ELHREREHE

R AT LR
22 AR BER R BN AR
BRANE -

HE_ZT-—ZTFA=tHILF
E - BEITIE F TR AR AEE AR
2 DARR {7181 & A 53,008,000%
TTERIBRER - HESFEERT
ARIREEFE - AR ANURD
BNRS  ALBERREME

f& e

+x - fih
REE

AERRAFFEAEBFHEER
EREHzeRAERARRE
RED -

HAbEE SRR B A B2 BIh
R s 2 B RN I
HlEsE ARSI R
ROFEHIRRELECEELAR
ZER -

35.

36.

UNLISTED WARRANTS (continued)

No share-based compensation expenses in relation to the
issue of the Unlisted Warrants had been recognised in the
profit or loss for the year.

For the year ended 30 June 2010, HK$53,008,000 of share-
based compensation expenses in relation to the issue of the
Unlisted Warrants had been recognised in profit or loss and
the corresponding amount of which had been credited to
the warrant reserve. No liabilities were recognised due to
share-based payment transactions.

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve represents the difference between the
consideration paid for the additional interest in the
subsidiaries and the non-controlling interest’s share of the
assets and liabilities reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position at the dates of the acquisitions of the
non-controlling interests.
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36. RESERVES (continued)

RAE] Company
TRREE
RARER TR BARE TUKEE
Share B4 Convertible Non- REEH
premium Warrant  note equity distributable ~ Retained st
account reserve reserve reserve profits Total
FET FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZEZNFLA—H 2% Balanceat 1July2009 190,743 - - 273,606 159,013 623,362
ZE-TEERERE Interim 2010 dividend - - - - (3,128) (3,128)
RABER 2 Recognition of share-

K based compensation = 53,008 = = - 53,008
BRBAIRS Transactions with owners - 53,008 - - (3,128) 49,880
TEEEF Net profit for the year - - - - 61,276 61,276
FER2ENGES Total comprehensive

income for the year - - - - 61,276 61,276
BR=Z-ZERERE  Proposed final 2010

dividend - - - - (3,128) (3,128)
R-E—ZF,A=+H% Balance at 30 June 2010

“E-ZRELA-HZE% and! July 2010 190,743 53,008 - 273,606 214,033 731,390

BITAAIRER (H:E=12) Issue of convertible

note (note 32) - - 2,310 - - 2,310
2 —FhHRS Interim 2011 dividend - - - - (3,128) (3,128)
BHEEAZRS Transactions with

owners - - 2,310 - (3,128) (818)
REE | Net profit for the year - - - = 5,388 5,388
REERERREE Total comprehensive

income for the year - - - - 5,388 5,388
RZE——%XA=tH  Balance at 30 June 2011

k53 190,743 53,008 2310 273,606 216,293 735,960

(=l
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(=2)

+75 > &

H

N (&)

A DR R A — LA AR
AR Z ERREERFK2.5058
TTHIRZE0N0B T E £ 2%
{g o

=+t BREE

AARFIBITEREEKM B R E]
$2{£481,000,0008 T( = —=
£ 1 512,000,000787T) ZHER ©
BIRER @ (R TT R B ZE
B3 ANATBEAEMRITER
ZEME - NEER  HNESFR
ATeRBEAREEEZEERZ
B0 - E I LA R E R AR
BHIE R 2 EEEH B -

=1\~ BARRE

R-ZE——FA=1+H K&
B ARNARAE NRERZER
HHE

36.

37.

38.

RESERVES (continued)

Company (continued)

The non-distributable reserve represents the premium
arising on the reduction of the par value of ordinary shares
of the Company from HK$2.50 to HK$0.10 per share in
1994.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has provided guarantees amounting to
HK$481 million (2010: HK$512 million) with respect to
bank loans to its subsidiaries. Under the guarantees, the
Company would be liable to pay the banks if the banks
are unable to recover the loans. At the reporting date, no
provision for the Company’s obligation under the guarantee
contract has been made as the directors considered that it
was not probable that the repayment of the loans would be
in default.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2011, the Group/the Company had outstanding
capital commitments as follows:

rEE RAF
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET FET FrET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$ 000
4B AR#EME ©  Contracted but not provided for:
W - B KEE Property, plant and equipment - 559 - =
KEMEE TR Properties under development
RERPYZ classified under investment
property 13,832 29,981 - -
PUEE B A A Cash consideration in relation to
Z2HEERE the acquisition of subsidiaries
(FzEa) (note a) 113,000 - 113,000 -
126,832 30,540 113,000 -

R EXHmEEIN RT——
FARA=TH  XEARARF
INE A NEAESE ©

Save as disclosed above, the Group and the Company also
had the following capital commitment as at 30 June 2011.
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=+

(a

BAKE &)

R-2BAF+— A
s = N N/NI=] - =
Benefit Well Investments
Limited([Benefit Well])
(REBRLZES MK
SNZBRAT  BREE
ME2EHA) FIVEE
wE(TEEm=#E]D - Am
Benefit Well Uf#Big Bonus
Limited R £ B R F] (47
7 [Big Bonus 5@ |) £ 5B
B % 17 & 7 ° Big Bonus
SEEZERPEEEHRK
RMRBERE - IRIBE
EmZEEBBHAEZZTEN
F+—A=tTHZ2®@7xH
m b B s RRE
#738,000,0007% 7t © #
LA 2R € X & 113,000,000
BILTREBETREEE
325,000,000 J& 2 A]
BREBEUARBITAS
300,000,000 7T & £
176,470,588 i 1X (& A% 1
(B Hr 48R ) (E 1T -

BIEEMRA - iR 5
BEGEEEARE K EE
R E—FFHBERAR
AIAMAE-ZE—ZTF—A
ZTRBZBEHFEE-
RZZE—ZFF+—A+N
B - KA & ~ Benefit Well
KBRS AR S —THE 7
& Lz REELER
AT —ZF+— A
+hBERE-_ZT——F
AA+thB - RZZT——
FRA+AB  AAF -
Benefit Well & PR 5t £ 5T
VB RS BE
oz REEILEEBHRE=F
— FRATNBERE
—T—F+—A+NB-

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a

On 20 November 2009, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (“S & P Agreement”)
with Benefit Well Investments Limited (”Benefit
Well”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability and indirectly wholly-
owned by Mr. Chan, to acquire 100% of the
issued share capital of Big Bonus Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively “Big Bonus Group”), which
are principally engaged in mining and exploration
of mineral reserves in the Mainland China, from
Benefit Well. Pursuant to the S & P Agreement and
the supplemental agreement dated 30 November
2009, the total consideration for the aforesaid
acquisition is HK$738,000,000 which is to be
satisfied by cash consideration of HK$113,000,000,
issuance of convertible notes with principal amount
of HK$325,000,000 and issuance of a total of
176,470,588 (before Share Subdivision) consideration
shares with principal amount of HK$300,000,000.

The above transaction constituted a very substantial
acquisition and connected transaction under the
Listing Rules. More details were disclosed in the
Company'’s circular dated 25 January 2010. On 18
November 2010, the Company, Benefit Well and
Mr. Chan entered into a supplemental agreement to
extend the long stop date of the aforesaid transaction
from 19 November 2010 to 19 May 2011. On 19
May 2011, the Company, Benefit Well and Mr. Chan
entered into another supplemental agreement to
extend the long stop date of the aforesaid transaction
from 19 May 2011 to 19 November 2011.

~
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=+/)\ » EXRKE &) 38.

RZE——FH=1TH
NE=EN N =
HY - KA R)ARTER UL Big
Bonus &£ -

=+ BEHEKRE 39.

AEENGEHERHHASET
B MAEMERBTIES -
B (BHEAED) REERE
HBERBKTER - R —
FE=FLF-

TRIHE L E 2 RREMH
BN REAREREREBR D

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

The acquisition of Big Bonus Group has not been
completed at 30 June 2011 and up to the date of
approval of these financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain shops, office properties and
staff quarters under operating lease arrangements. Leases
(including contingent rental) are negotiated at fixed rate or
with reference to level of business and terms ranging from
one to three years.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling were due as follows:

T

rEE

Group
2011 2010
FEr FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
—F R Within one year 2,296 6,012
FEEFRF In the second to fifth year, inclusive 140 1,652

(BRIEEEMF)

2,436 7,664

RZE——FR T —FF A
=+8  ARARWEMAELTHE
B8k o

At 30 June 2011 and 2010, the Company did not have any
operating lease arrangements.
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M+ ¥£% a6, HEM 40. BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL
NE OF SUBSIDIARIES

40.1 X£FEEB 40.1 Business combination:

R_TE——F=ZA=+—
B 7 £ B HEGolden
Creation Company Limited
(TGolden Creation]) #T
YREHZE UBRER
{8 48 %8 491,000,000 7% T
# B Golden Creation 2
B #ETRA 280% X
B BEKREH&E G
XRGHR X&EBEH
# 4% & Golden Creation
EEgAFEHKE A
2 EHi AEBRSE
Golden Creation Z 12 -
i Golden Creation it 14
RAEREBE ZHBAR -
Golden Creation {t EIHE
FESBHMWES - 2K
BhASEREEKEZS
EBZHBHRE - B=F
——F=HA=+—HZ&E=
T——FNA=ZTHHRK
BEBERAEEN SR
3,470,000 7T KR R Tt 14 18
184 215,000 7T °

Golden Creation® I
B8 B HA e R 2 JE A
% 159,000/ 7T i 1R &
Golden Creation 3z il4E
AT AR EEFEL
LEBIEHE ©

On 31 March 2011, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement with Golden Creation
Company Limited (“Golden Creation”) to
subscribe for 80% of the issued share capital of
Golden Creation at a total cash consideration of
approximately HK$1 million. Having satisfied the
terms and conditions of the subscription agreement
on the same date, the Group had the right to
nominate the majority of the members of the board
of directors of Golden Creation and, by this means,
obtained control of Golden Creation which became
the subsidiary of the Group thereafter. Golden
Creation is engaged in trading of jewels and precious
metal ornament. The acquisition was made as part of
the Group's strategy to expand its trading business in
jewels. The acquired business contributed revenue of
HK$3,470,000 and loss after tax of HK$215,000 to
the Group from 31 March 2011 to 30 June 2011.

The non-controlling interest in Golden Creation of
HK$159,000 recognised at the acquisition date was
measured by non-controlling interest proportionate
share of Golden Creation’s identifiable net assets.

O
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M+ ¥£% a6, HEM 40. BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL
BT 2 OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40.1 ¥£EEB(E) 40.1 Business combination: (continued)

AFE WEE 7 BRE{E

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair value amount
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ER Y G Property, plant and equipment 66 66
2 S WA Trade receivables 8,355 9,467
HEARE - BERk Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Hfth YR IR 127 127
R RRITHEER Cash and bank balances 2,414 2,414
A Inventories 2,511 2,511
B S ENFIA Trade payables (6,096) (6,096)
Ho fEAT5RIE Other payables and accruals
[ETER (6,536) (6,536)
JEFE SRS Non-controlling interests 159 (191)
BEWEEEEFE Net assets acquired 1,000 1,762
WHEEL RS Net cash inflow arising on the acquisition:
TMAFE
BENRERE Cash consideration paid (1,000)
BERBARZ Cash and bank balances in subsidiary acquired
R& MIRTEEH 2,414
1,414
B & EHERE RS Details of net assets acquired were as follows:
LU
FET
HK$'000
NS NZEENRE  Purchase consideration settled in cash 1,000
BEWEBEEEZAT(E  Fair value of net assets acquired (1,000)

[

Goodwill _

)l
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M+ £% a6, HEM 40. BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL
BT &) OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40.1 EKEH(E)

40.1 Business combination: (continued)

P ULEE B HR & 5 e I E
2 7~ F 18 % 8,400,000 75
Lo BHRBARBZRE
#)< %8 9,500,000/ 7T
FEEAE A= 1,100,000 70
AU E o

WMKER T —FF+
B—H#77 AEEZ
W= & Bk B 1% s A g o
Bl £993,000,0007 7T &
29,000,000/ 7T ° fEE &
BHEERBZ R K
NMBRWEER-_ZE—F
FLrtA—BEKEASE
ERAIERCEEBRLE
EEZTER -

=+ B IEF Z 3 £ U
BAF -

The fair value of trade receivables as at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$8.4 million. The gross
contractual amounts of trade receivables were
HK$9.5 million, of which an amount of HK$1.1
million is expected to be uncollectible.

If the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2010, the
Group's revenue and profit after tax would have
been HK$993 million and HK$29 million respectively,
for the year ended 30 June 2011. This pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would had
been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 July 2010, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

There was no acquisition of subsidiaries during the
year ended 30 June 2010.
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40. BUSINESS COMBINATION/DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

40.2 Disposal of subsidiaries:

The Group had deregistered several subsidiaries
during the year and the net liabilities being disposed
of are as follows:

FET
HK$'000

JEFIE - %4 K Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
H b pE I RIE 1,503
E At 5RIE Other payables and accruals (4,814)

K FERTE

LA 7 R e Translation reserve realised (447)
FEIE B Non-controlling interests (851)
FEEEM B A RUWEE  Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries (4,609)

HE-T-TFE~A=+
B Lk 4 3 4 i 5 Y

AT -

O+— FHELTRS

FRZERBREEMA D HEZ
RBESRZHIN  AEERFARAET
SIBELRS °

()

143,813,000 (= E—
T4E 1 5275,000770) D E
ERTHETHERR - 28
B RS B BB E N AR
I T PR ©

REE-Z—ZTF A=
BIEFE  HBEAREE
21,0008 7T ° ERAAEE
RN A L BE P A o

There was no disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 30 June 2010.

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, during the year, the
Group had the following related party transactions.

(@) Subcontracting fees of HK$3,813,000 (2010:
HK$5,275,000) paid to certain associates. The
subcontracting fees are mutually negotiated between
the Group and the associates.

(b)  During the year ended 30 June 2010, sales of goods
to associates of HK$21,000 were made. The terms
were mutually negotiated between the Group and the
associates.
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41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(0)

During the year ended 30 June 2010, interest
expenses of HK$12,000 were paid to a company
wholly owned by Mr. Chan. The interest expenses
were charged at three-month Hong Kong Interbank
Offer Rate.

Compensation of key management personnel
Included in employee benefit expenses are key

management personnel compensation and comprises
the following categories:

2011 2010

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

RS R Short term employee benefits 9,677 8,985
BER 1A Post-employment benefits 312 286
9,989 9,271

72 U8 Big Bonus 5 [E 2~
HEENHE=1T\() °

I 885,384,527 R MMS %
DZHEBHRME=1T—
k=t=-

The proposed acquisition of Big Bonus Group as
detailed in note 38(a).

The acquisition of 5,384,527 shares of MMS as
detailed in note 21 and note 32.

w
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IEI-I-:\ii;ﬁﬁfﬁﬁiﬁ%%

HE_ZT——FA=THIEF
B AEEETNIEZEFRER
5

(@ WfEFE=+—Ek=+=
it - A 50,518,0007% 7T Uk
§# 2,239,873 MMS I 2
REBERTRAFES
50,518,000 JT 2 A 32 %
AT o

by HTWE-  BEESEE 2
BEREBEEREZE=
- F XA =+ H
1EFFE A 2,640,000 78 TTI%
AN

Z—ZEFRNA=1+THILF
B AEEATHERIFRER

(@ EFBEEREBEEREZR
—EZNFANA=1THIE
fFE LA 5,054,000 78 iR S
A o

m+=-M#%EkEEH
BRRBUR

AEENEESRTABRERA
BRE - REEKFOR - KRES
ERER  BHRIGUR - Hit
FEUWGRIR ~ AT IRE [ 2 i#
2 B MReTH HIE
IR - B IR N e B
A RITER - EEBAR - B
BRRRAREHER 2 &8
TESMT A  BSEERA
BIRIE R ATRER - ZEF 2R
TEFFISEMRMMERE - B2
So R T AR AR R KR KZ
FEBRHBREN T - BEE
SR RERZERAR - AR
BLER B RO T E 5 o

42,

43,

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group had the
following major non-cash transactions:

(@)  As detailed in notes 21 and 32, the acquisition of
2,239,873 shares of MMS at the consideration
of HK$50,518,000 was satisfied by issuing the
Convertible Note A with fair value of HK$50,518,000.

(b) The purchase consideration of certain property,
plant and equipment was settled by the deposits of
HK$2,640,000 which had been paid during the year
ended 30 June 2010.

During the year ended 30 June 2010, the Group had the
following major non-cash transaction:

(@)  The purchase consideration of buildings was settled
by the deposits of HK$5,054,000 which had been
paid during the year ended 30 June 2009.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, long term receivables, loans to jointly
controlled entities, trade receivables, other receivables,
redemption option of convertible note, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, other payables and accruals,
bank loans, balance with subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, derivative financial instruments,
amount due to ultimate holding company and convertible
note. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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—E-FFEXA=THKE
AEBERERARNEE
Bz HEMERIIE X
BEMEERAE -

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk

0)

Foreign currency risk
Group

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
the United Kingdom and the Mainland China with
most of the transactions denominated and settled in
HK$, United States dollars (“US$"), British Pounds,
Canadian Dollars (“CAD"), Philippines Pesos and
RMB. No foreign currency risk has been identified
for the financial assets and financial liabilities
denominated in RMB, which is the functional
currencies of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
to which these transactions relate. The Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk primarily arises
from certain financial instruments including available-
for-sale financial assets, long term receivables,
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade
payables and derivative financial instruments which
are denominated in US$, Euro, British Pounds, CAD
and Philippines Pesos. During the years, the Group
did not have foreign currency hedging policy but
management continuously monitors the foreign
exchange exposure.

The following table summarises the Group’s major
financial assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group companies as at 30 June 2011 and
2010.

Ul
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (continued)

REE(E) Group (continued)
PAF A THIR
Expressed in HK$'000
FEE
ES &t it i b
British Philippines
us$ Euro Pounds CAD Pesos
—T——F At 30 June 2011
~A=1H
AfHEY Available-for-sale financial
SREE assets 4,231 - - 113,762 1,198
B S RWGIE Trade receivables 93,704 = 17,619 = =
BeRHEEE  Cashand cash equivalents 25,224 866 6,041 109 -
B 5 ENFE Trade payables (113,264) (661) (573) = =
fTESRMIA Derivative financial
instruments - - 126 - -
ZEFRR Overall net exposure 9,895 205 23,213 113,871 1,198
—Z-ZF At 30 June 2010
~A=1H
AftHE” Available-for-sale financial
SREE assets 4,231 - = = 1,166
2 5 E Trade receivables 83,732 = 21,292 = =
BERREEE  Cashand cash equivalents 33,743 696 6,955 160 =
ZS.MNFE  Trade payables (140,652) (1,483) (451) = =
fTESmMIA Derivative financial
instruments - - (498) - -
BETREE Overall net exposure (18,946) (787) 27,298 160 1,166
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BE—P——EXA=+AILER
m+=- 8% & g & 12 B 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
BRRBUR (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Gk (&) Market risk (continued)
() SMNEESE(E) (i) Foreign currency risk (continued)
REH (&) Group (continued)
BRETTE B THESE - R As US$ is pegged to HK$, the Group does not expect
BB ETL B IT 2 E any significant movements in the US$/HK$ exchange
R 2B EEMEANE rates. No sensitivity analysis in respect of the Group's
o BEERE HEHE financial assets and liabilities denominated in US$
REBAETYE 2 F is disclosed as in the opinion of directors, such
BEMBBEEBACERRE sensitivity analysis does not give additional value
2 REARHERGEHE in view of insignificant movement in the US$/HK$
ETLRB T2 EREFHT exchange rates as at reporting date. The following
A BMZEFRE DI table indicates the approximate change in the
EIRPEINEE - TRE Group's profit for the year and equity in response to
TAEBREERARTE reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
KRR 2 ERNEEA] R rates to which the Group has significant exposure at
BE) AESAEBEE the reporting date.
A A R R 2 R 2 B AY
) o
2011 2010
N fBE = |\ B
T/ R/
(TF%) HER (FF%) HER
Increase/ wAZ Increase/ AL
(Decrease) ge (Decrease) T
in foreign  Effect on in foreign  Effect on
exchange profit for #E#  exchange  profit for gy
rates  the year Equity rates  the year Equity
FET FET FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BT Euro +5% 10 10 +5% (39) (39)
-5% (10) (10) -5% 39 39
£ British Pounds +5% 516 516 +5% (496) (496)
-5% (293) (293) -5% (1,803) (1,803)
iz CAD +5% 5 5,666 +5% 8 8
-5% (5) (5,666) 5% (8) (8)
FERBERR Philippines Pesos ~ +5% - 60 +5% - 58
-5% - (60) -5% - (58)

~
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

0)

(ii)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
Company
The Company did not expose to foreign currency risk.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the reporting dates and that all other
variables remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
reporting date.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

Equity price risk

Equity price risk related to the risk that the fair values
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of change in market price (other
than changes in interest rate and foreign exchange
rate). The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed equity securities
which are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, or available-for-sale. The board of directors
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should the
need arise. The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Equity price risk (continued)

At 30 June 2011, if equity prices had increased/
(decreased) by 10% and all other variables were held
constant:

- the Group’s profit for the year would increase/
(decrease) by approximately HK$1,388,000
(2010: increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$1,152,000). This is mainly due to the
changes in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss; and

- the Group’s equity other than retained profits
would increase/(decrease) by approximately
HK$13,349,000 (2010: increase/(decrease) by
approximately HK$2,456,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of listed equity investments
included in the Group's available-for-sale
financial assets.

This sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the price change had occurred at the reporting
dates and has been applied to the Group’s investment
on that date.

The policies to manage equity price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

O
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk
primarily arising from bank borrowings. Majority of
the bank borrowings are arranged at variable rates
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The interest rates and repayment terms of the
bank borrowings outstanding at reporting dates are
disclosed in note 29 respectively.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
profit after tax for the year and retained profits to a
change in interest rates of +100 basis point and -100
basis point (2010: +100 basis point and -100 basis
point) with effect from the beginning of the year. The
calculations are based on the Group’s bank balances
and interest bearing bank borrowings held at each
reporting date which are subject to variable interest
rates. All other variables are held constant.
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BRRBUR (#) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
ThiZE b (42) Market risk (continued)
(i) FEEE () (i) Interest rate risk (continued)
2011 2010
FET TFET
HK$°000 HK$'000
= _EFA 100 B2 If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZZ—Z4 : 100&8) (2010: 100 basis point) higher
FREEFIE N Net profit for the year increase by 43 730
fisl A1) 2= P& 100 £ B If interest rates were 100 basis point
(ZZ—Z4 : 100&2E) (2010: 100 basis point) lower
FAFFR D Net profit for the year decrease by (43) (730)

AEEBBEFREAR—EET
EEN AR BOR - YR RZ
FHRB

FERER

EERRECRIAEZRZEHT
RERBEEB TR Z FHRETE
B AKBERIUBIERLZ
R o K32 5 ¥ 77 R BE5h B EHE
M EEREREEBITREN
A’ MAKEMES 2&AE
E BB LASR & I TSI R P51 5%
FEENEREERR - HRERE
EER  SRAEEEETERER
Rl ERBR - AEHEERRE
Kk R A B R e R IR M
RTE © LI ARBERBZEHE
AT S IRIB I EUGKIA - ARELR
BRI W E R E R SR E
BE- Bt EE@RRAE
2B RS AR S S

B o

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years are considered
to be effective.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instruments and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure
to perform their obligations in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the senior
management compiles the credit and risk management
policies, to approve credit limits and to determine any
debt recovery action on those delinquent receivables. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount for
each individual account receivables at each reporting date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the board of directors
considers that the Group’s credit risk is effectively controlled
and significantly reduced.
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43,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
primarily attributable to amounts due from subsidiaries,
other receivables and contingent liabilities in relation to the
financial guarantee contracts as detailed in note 37 to the
financial statements.

The Group's credit risk exposure is spread over a number of
counterparties and customers. Hence, it has no significant
concentration of credit risk by a single debtor.

Credit risk on cash and bank balances is mitigated as cash is
deposited in banks of high credit rating.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’ exposure
to credit risk arising from long term and trade receivables
are disclosed in notes 22 and 24 to the financial statements
respectively.

Save as the long term receivables as detailed in note 22(a),
none of the Group's financial assets are secured by collateral
or other credit enhancements.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk related to the risk that the Group will not
able to meet its obligation associated with its financial
liabilities. In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by management to finance the Group'’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows in the short and long term. Management monitors the
utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.



Annual Report 2011 3§
Notes to the Financial Statements m 51 7% 3R 25 [ ::

For the year ended 30 June 2011
HE-_ZT——FA=1tHILFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

m+= -8 ERkRE
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REBETEE(F)

2 H

Liquidity risk (continued)

AEEBBEFEAR—EET
MBETHE Iu?dﬁ'jui:ftil

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in

EREEREE AR managing liquidity risk.
$E Bz & HARITENKESR The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
FRzEMmBEMNIHAAES the reporting date, based on the contracted undiscounted
ZZDT : payments, was as follows:
REH Group
BRARITE
Renme 1EHE
ek 1EAR BAR2E
Total RERER More than
BREE contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years
FHET FET FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=Z——%<A=1TH Asat30June2011
FTESHEE Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
B S ENFIR Trade payables 143,522 143,522 143,522 =
HMENFIER Other payables and
BB accruals 41,859 41,859 41,859 -
FET — R R Due to a jointly
BT controlled entity 14 14 14 =
BITER-HER Bank loans, secured 235,139 244,464 47,101 197,363
QE:lies Convertible note 50,802 58,169 4,088 54,081
FEAT B AR Due to ultimate
UNGIE holding company 7,877 7,877 - 7,877
479,213 495,905 236,584 259,321

[o¥]
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

REH (Z) Group (continued)
BRARNER
ReneE TFE
k] 1ER BOR2E
Total BREXEER More than
FHE contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=2-2F:A=1H As at 30 June 2010
FHTESRER Non-derivative financial
liabilities:
B oM Trade payables 147,645 147,645 147,645 -
HitENFER Other payables
E:tER and accruals 44,920 44,920 44,920 -
FEfEE ARZIE Due to associates 335 335 335 =
FE—R LR Due to a jointly
B controlled entity 5 5 5 =
RITER-BEA Bank loans, secured 178,994 185,144 172,744 12,400
IR AN Loans from non-controlling
interests 1,125 1,125 - 1,125
FEAT AR Due to ultimate holding
UNGIE company 7,877 7,877 = 7,877
380,901 387,051 365,649 21,402
TESRaE: Derivative financial
liabilities:
fTEemIA Derivative financial
instruments 498 498 498 -
381,399 387,549 366,147 21,402
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

RAFE] Company
BRRAR
RenmE 1560E
g 1ER BAR25E
Total REREE More than
RHE contractual Within 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years
BT BT FET BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK3$'000 HK$'000
M=Z-—%XA=tH  Asat30June 2011
HibERFUEREST &M Other payables
and accruals 492 492 492 -
PRrEEH 2 BITS IR Financial guarantee issued
BEAEREHE Maximum amount
guaranteed - 235,139 235,139 -
R=Z—-ZFF:A=1H Asat30June 2010
HAENFIERESTER  Other payables
and accruals 1,439 1,439 1,439 -
e 2 BT IR Financial guarantee issued
BAEREHE Maximum amount
guaranteed - 178,994 178,994 -

R BRR TR 2 A FHEE

BB B LS SMAER
& (82 ATEAERZ TEHA
ZHHARY  BEMEERE
EEH BB MR - ATER
BHBUTERE -

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position

The hierarchy groups financial assets and liabilities into three
levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs
used in measuring the fair value of these financial assets and
liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

a



Notes to the Financial Statements m Bl 75 3R & Bt =+

For the year ended 30 June 2011
HE-_ZT——FX A=+tHILFE

(=2

m+=- B E ki & 18 B 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BRBEK @) OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
R RRER 2 AV EFT= Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
(%) of financial position (continued)

- F1E: AREENERT - Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

52 RE (CREFHE) for identical assets;

- FE2E: mIAmEXZED —  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included

BR) M (B ERHE within Level 1 that are observable for the instruments,

P AER 2B A (T RE either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived

F1BABSZHE) & from prices); and
-  E3E: WHBEAEHR —  Level 3: inputs for the instruments that are not based

MSHEEmMAR T A 25 on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

AELBRZBA) °

—HeMEENBEREMES The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
AZ AHERBAZEIR @ BE financial assets and liabilities is categorised in its entirety is
RERAFEAEAEEREEL based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
HIEERERETE - RiRE M5 fair value measurement. The financial assets and liabilities
MARANIRAFEFEZEME measured at fair value in the consolidated statement of
ERBEDEADBATZAFE financial position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy
B as follows:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement

(&) of financial position (continued)
E1B $2E £33 #@st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FAT FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(FizEa) (FizEDb) (FizEc)
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
RZZ——%X<A=1H  Asat30June 2011
AEHEz SREE Available-for-sale
financial assets
—fEEBEmZ — Equity securities listed
PRATEH in Hong Kong 18,527 = - 18,527
— gL — Equity securities listed
BARE 5 in overseas 114,960 - - 114,960
BIEEE 2 L%« Listed securities held for trading:
—fEEBEmZ — Equity securities listed
PRATEH in Hong Kong 13,874 = - 13,874
ABRREEZ Redemption option
BEEEE of convertible note - - 1,361 1,361
TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - 126 - 126
147,361 126 1,361 148,848
R=ZE-ZFRA=tH Asat30June2010
AtEHE eREE Available-for-sale financial assets
—fEEBEmZ — Equity securities listed
BR AR 5E 55 in Hong Kong 23,393 = - 23,393
—fEEh L — Equity securities listed
BARESR in overseas 1,166 - = 1,166
FEEE 2 FES Listed securities held for trading:
—fEBELmZ ~ Equity securities listed
RAE S in Hong Kong 11,517 = - 11,517
TEERIE Derivative financial instruments - (498) - (498)
36,076 (498) - 35,578
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ERBER &)

REBARRKER 2 D FEFE
(&
ARG ERFEZIERGER
iy S DA TE 2 ¥ 5 HATR] AR L 3 SR B

@ EWBRAEBEHFZAFEDES
EREEMBCEANEEEL
BRI E AR HINE B K E
KR (HEE) o

() TTESMIAZATFEIER
ERMISAUTAZ REE
E SRR ERM - KT
FEEHGADERIMEER
AERTISEUE

(0 BEA/AFIBZAKETRE
TETMERREERIIEA
ABRMEREAEEL
ERHA 2 AERM

MR - AR 1 2B
AFEHENE - NRETEE
WAL EIE (T
") -

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position (continued)

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose
of measuring fair value are unchanged compared to the
previous reporting periods.

Notes:

(@ Fair values of listed equity securities have been determined by
reference to their quoted bid prices at the reporting date and
have been translated using the spot foreign currency rates at the
end of the reporting period where appropriate.

(b) Fair values of derivative financial instruments are measured using
quoted prices in active markets for similar instruments, or using
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market data.

(0) The Group's financial assets classified in Level 3 use valuation
technique based on significant inputs that are not based on
observable market data.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2010: Nil).
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m+m- L EHNDENE 44. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
MEERBEEMR AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
=

REB RAR RN EE B RN
CREE KB ENREERIZMN
TH% - 22 Mi5E3.13%3.20 4
BEeH T EMD B 25

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial assets and liabilities as recognised at reporting
dates may be categorised as follows. See notes 3.13 and
3.20 for explanations about how the category of financial

ZHIBEEET= © instruments affects their subsequent measurement.
A&EE b N
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010

TET TR FET TR
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000

(E51)
(restated)
ERMEE Financial assets
FREBEE Non-current assets
AfHEZ SRIEE Available-for-sale
financial assets 137,718 28,790 - -
B EWGRIE Loans and receivables:
— BT HEEFIEE — Loans to jointly
ZER controlled entities 330,300 255,800 = =
— FEURBH B A RIFIE — Due from subsidiaries = = 378,822 361,199
468,018 284,590 378,822 361,199
RBEE Current assets
AT EFAERZZ Financial assets at
BEEE fair value through
profit or loss 15,235 11,517 1,361 —
TESBMTA Derivative financial instruments 126 - = =
B EWGRIE Loans and receivables:
— B S RIFIE — Trade receivables 116,484 113,375 - =
— B b FEURIE — Other receivables 4,109 8,749 319 -
— FEURBH B A RIFUE - Due from subsidiaries = = 173,772 141,317
— FEUES & N B R - Due from associates 18 202 8 8
—JEU—EIHFIESIEEE - Due from ajointly
FKIA controlled entity 141 110 = -
—-RekHeEHE — Cash and cash equivalents 49,867 153,940 76 83
185,980 287,893 175,536 141,408
653,998 572,483 554,358 502,607

O
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B & 44. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

MEERBEM AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
CNE-9) (continued)
rEE FAUNE]
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
FET FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
v
(restated)
tRHEE Financial liabilities
nEEE Current liabilities
PABESERX ANGT 22 Financial liabilities
TRIBE: measured at
amortised cost:
— B S ENIE — Trade payables (143,522)  (147,645) = =
—HiENRIERETER - Other payables
and accruals (41,859) (44,920) (492) (1,439)
L EYNCTE O] - Due to associates = (498) = -
FE S SRR — Due to a jointly
ERETIE controlled entity (14) (5) = =
—RITER—FHEH ~ Bank loans, secured (235,139)  (178,994) - =
NEEFABRZ Financial liabilities at
ﬁmﬂﬁf,\ : fair value through
profit or loss:
—TEEBMIT A — Derivative financial
instruments - (498) - -
(420,534) (372,560) (492) (1,439)
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
PABESER NG T 22 Financial liabilities
TRIBE: measured at
amortised cost:
— R SREER AT - Due to ultimate
A holding company (7,877) (7,877) = =
— IR B R — Loans from non-
controlling interests - (1,125) - -
— AR — Convertible note (50,802) - (50,802) -
(58,679) (9,002) (50,802) -
(479,213) (381,562) (51,294) (1,439)
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RENETE

AR BB SR AR R
RR-_FT—FFLtA+=B#
o AT BB RIS T -

Exg((E5g ) TRBREGRT
A N5 & B8 A T3 SRR A
RBARBZIAD -

() AREZEMEE (BH2
2REGRE)  RRITERA
BgTE K2 EX(E2
FEETT - SERTT IBIL I
HITES) HEH - D&
REHRNEEZIER &%
RIELEB 2 ERAEE
MEARRERERRE
RE(HESFEER) @ X

(i) EEEZKERF -

REEELEARATZES
(VAR AR B B 5
(BAREFRR)EBMIFEER
BRARBHE : () ARBK
0 B X H R A B #AR1 R(5) (@
EXRAEBRAMEHRERMR
ZFHYTHE R (iii) A A B RD
ZEfE -

SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was approved by the shareholders of the Company on 13
July 2010. The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten
years.

The board of directors (“Board”) may in its discretion, invite
any following eligible person to take up the options to
subscribe for shares of the Company.

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive director) or consultant of the Company; any
of its subsidiaries or any investee who, as determined
by the Board, have contributed or will contribute to
the growth and development of the Group; or

(i) any investee.

The subscription price must be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer of the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of
the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the
Company.
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AERATHNERESZRTBH
B EEEBRREMEERE -
R MBI - AR AERA
AR 1B TTEAREHARE -
TERIEZTE TR 2 22008
AR FTEE T RO IR (D B BT S 1B 18
()B4 B B AR B 31T 2
10% ; 3% (i) AR BB 31T
R2Z30% ° BRIEMB AR TIRRE
RAXR A S EHE - B BIFME
REAREME - BRTFFREEBA
T2 ERE(BERTERMER
1T 2 NG ) T IE M B 31T
N8 T 8517 2 B A7 B BT AT kR 6
ANREREBEITRAZ 1% °

BRESRARESFENRHE
HBBER NS ZARA - 1%
HRAFEREZZR L BHmX
B EEZER L AR 5
Z BERA o &t 8 B ERAIA
RI ARRIFZET B B
1 o

SCHEME (continued)

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified to
him or her within ten business days from the offer date.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed (i) 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at the adoption date; or (ii) 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The total
number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in
any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the share
capital of the Company then in issue unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meetings.

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall
commence on a date not earlier than the offer date and not
be more than ten years from the offer date. No share option
was granted pursuant to the Scheme since its adoption.
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AEEEAERNEERRERE
HIBRZEEFRRERLEK -
RBXFEEGRERREERK
{k °

AEEERHEEARRE  THT
BT ZBELFE - B
RRXFRBEARE  AEEHA
AR MR RIS » MR
RIEERL BT - RAF
Bk E—FE AREEYELE
13 BRSRFF R -

AEEBBEREARBLRE
2EN - BERRABLHERRER/F
BERARRATEINFAE - F
BENGEMBRARMAIIRZ
RITEEMEESTRIR MR
SEENE - ARBEEHEKER
BRELRERERIEKTY -EF
R NEEBR  AKEEARE
B RERESTKT - REHE
BEERBLEMT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the current and previous years.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debts divided by total equity plus net debts. Net debts
are calculated as the sum of bank and other borrowings
less the sum of cash and cash equivalents as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group
aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level and
the directors are of the opinion that the Group’s gearing
ratio was maintained at reasonable level at the reporting
dates. The gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as
follows:

w
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46. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

rEE
Group
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$°000 HK$°000
(&%)
(restated)

mEIEE Current liabilities
SRITER—FiKH Bank loans, secured 235,139 178,994
FREBERE Non-current liabilities
Al AR IR Convertible note 50,802 -
FER AR AZAR A Bl R IE Due to ultimate holding company 7,877 7,877
FEIEFIERE R Loans from non-controlling interests = 1,125
&R e Total debts 293,818 187,996
B ReRREERE Less: Cash and cash equivalents (49,867) (153,940)
FEE Net debts 243,951 34,056
HErs A TE Total equity 1,033,138 1,007,516
EnBELFAE Total equity and net debts 1,277,089 1,041,572
EREELE Gearing ratio 19.1% 3.3%
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MEFEE PARTICULARS OF PROPERTY
RZE——FNA=1H as at 30 June 2011
REYE INVESTMENT PROPERTY

AEEEL R

Attributable

NE A& FHES interest
Location Use Lease term of the Group
fE=EhE R 236-242 5% EES ~H 100%
236-242 Des Voeux Road Central Commercial Long
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LEMBHE FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
UTNAEAREBBSERENRFEEEER A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
BE AERIEREESIEE 5% controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
BEBE T3 2 K EX B RE LIRS as extracted from the respective published audited financial
MBI DB - ZRHEW T EKEE statements and restated as appropriate, is set out as below. This
TG 2 —8n - summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
ES RESULTS

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(87 (8751) (E5)) (87

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

Yozs Revenue 973,501 1,031,708 1,189,622 1,497,682 1,632,180
BRETS TR &R Profit before income tax 35,387 11,189 71,142 101,073 259,794
FisR (Fx), /1% Income tax (expense)/credit (5,646) (6,594) 1,130 (10,790) (10,898)
FEEHF Profit for the year 29,741 4,595 72,272 90,283 248,896
IR Non-controlling interests 3,712 217 (10) (3,611) (74,010)
AREEEA Net profit attributable to the

JE(E4E 7 owners of the Company 33,453 4,812 72,262 86,672 174,886
BE - BBERIEEFIES ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-

CONTROLLING INTERESTS

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
FET FET FET FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(E51) (E5) (51) (E51)

(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

LESE Total assets 1,528,734 1,399,111 2,013,672 1,673,773 1,683,031
BERSE Total liabilities (495,596) (391,595) (967,771) (731,523) (840,841)
IR Non-controlling interests 3,665 (1,057) (1,274) (1,865) (1,208)

1,036,803 1,006,459 1,044,627 940,385 840,982
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